
Date Published:4 January 2023     

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Friday 13 January 2023 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2022.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests from members. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

DISCUSSION ITEMS

4  UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
(Pages 11 - 46)

To receive an update report from the Chair of the Improvement Board on 
GFRS progress to date against the Improvement Plan. 

Steve Mawson

5  GFRS'S SERVICE PLAN WITHIN THE CONTEXT OF THE DRAFT 
BUDGET 2023/24 (Pages 47 - 52)

To receive an overview of GFRS’s service plans within the context of the 
draft budget for 2023/24. 

Mark Preece

6  MOTION 901 - ROAD SAFETY IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE (Pages 53 - 54)

To consider a report on GFRS’s approach to road safety, including its role 
in education, prevention, and responding to collisions. 

Mark Preece



    

INFORMATION ITEMS

7  GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES (Pages 55 - 58)

To consider the latest GFRS performance data and any updates, including 
on the work being undertaken by the Prevention Team on cost of living 
issues. 

Mark Preece

8  FIRE AND POLICE COLLABORATION WRITTEN BRIEF (Pages 59 - 
62)

To note the written brief detailing the update provided at the previous 
Committee meeting on fire and police collaboration in Gloucestershire. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

WORK PLANNING

9  WORK PLAN 2023 (Pages 63 - 64)

To consider the Committee work plan, and suggest items for consideration 
at future meetings.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

10  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of meetings for 2023 (all meetings to start at 10am):

10 March 2023
26 May 2023
14 July 2023
15 September 2023
17 November 2023

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

Membership –  Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, 
Cllr Vernon Smith, Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on Friday 
11 November 2022 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Bernard Fisher
Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington (Vice-Chair)

Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Substitutes: Cllr John Bloxsom
Cllr Alan Preest

Apologies:

In Attebdabce 

Cllr Vernon  Smith and Cllr Wendy Thomas

63. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Wendy Thomas and Vernon Smith. Cllr John 
Bloxsom substituted at the meeting for Cllr Thomas, and Cllr Alan Preest 
substituted at the meeting for Cllr Smith. 

64. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2022 were approved. 

65. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest. 

66. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington was elected as Vice-Chair of the Fire and Rescue 
Scrutiny Committee. 

67. UPDATE ON PROGRESS WITH GFRS AND CONSTABULARY/PCC 
COLLABORATION 

Nick Evans, Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC), delivered a verbal 
update on progress with Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) and 
Gloucestershire Constabulary collaboration.

Members were informed that the Emergency Services Collaboration Board had now 
met on several occasions, at which GFRS, Gloucestershire Constabulary and, at 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

the most recent meeting, South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 
(SWAST) were represented. 

Members noted that GFRS and the Constabulary had been working together as 
part of the Safer Streets programme, which included fire officers taking part in 
holistic anti-social behaviour training, and both partners working together 
operationally, alongside landlords and local authorities, to identify and target the 
issues.

GFRS and the Constabulary had also been working together to provide 
preventative education to communities on fire safety and prevention of crime, 
ensuring the coordination of information provided. 

Collaboration on road safety was ongoing. It was understood that education was 
critical in preventing deaths and serious injury on roads. A new Road Safety 
Coordinator had been employed by GFRS to coordinate the ‘What If’ programme, 
which was delivered to schools, joint with the Constabulary. 

GFRS and the Constabulary had been collaborating on table-top exercises to 
ensure lessons were learnt from other areas on dealing with major incidents, and 
fire officers had attended a local police search management course to enable them 
to support the police in finding missing people. 

In terms of leadership, the Committee was informed that GFRS colleagues had 
attended leadership courses run by the Constabulary, and that both partners had 
been involved in each other’s recruitment processes for senior officers. 

It was announced, in terms of collaboration on the estates programme, that 
agreement had been reached for Newent and Winchcombe Fire Stations to become 
joint Police and Fire Stations. Nick Evans welcomed this opportunity for increased 
joint working, which would improve the safety and security of local residents, 
provide increased visibility, and increase the security of stations. 

Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer, echoed the comments on the strong relationship 
between GFRS, the Constabulary and the OPCC, particularly in terms of their joint 
working operationally, on leadership, and on community safety.

Several members praised the collaborative work being undertaken by GFRS and 
the Constabulary. 

One member asked how the public could be made aware of the joint Police and 
Fire Stations. 

Nick Evans replied that police vehicles would be visible at the stations, as well as 
signage, and police officers would be more visible in the local communities. 

One member sought reassurance that there would not be secure custody suites 
within the joint stations. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

In response, it was understood that the only secure custody suite available within 
Gloucestershire was located at the police headquarters. This was due to legal 
requirements and the need to provide a range of support to those taken into 
custody, such as mental health support, and drug and alcohol support.

Reassurance was also provided, in response to a further question, that the joint 
stations would retain their community aspects.

One member asked for advice relating to a policing issue within their division. Nick 
Evans agreed to discuss the matter with the member outside of the meeting. 

It was queried whether the Constabulary had considered the joint use of 
Cheltenham West Fire Station. Nick Evans agreed to take away and consider this 
suggestion.

One member sought reassurance that the policing element within the communities 
where the joint stations would be located would be retained. In response, it was 
explained that the joint stations would enable police officers to be based within the 
communities rather than elsewhere, and that police officer visibility would therefore 
increase in these areas. The joint stations would also provide the opportunity to 
expand the use of the special constabulary and volunteers in these communities. 

Clarification was sought as to the grade of fire officers attending the leadership 
courses provided by the Police at the Sabrina Centre in Berkeley. In response it 
was understood that it was generally middle managers that attended the courses, 
and that the courses taught general leadership skills rather than job specific. 

It was requested that a short briefing note be produced summarising the verbal 
update that had been provided at this meeting to enable members to effectively 
scrutinise the information. 

It was also requested that a further update on progress with collaboration between 
blue light services be provided in a few months’ time at a future Committee 
meeting. 

68. MOTION 901 - ROAD SAFETY IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Philip Williams, Assistant Director of Traffic and Transport, Gloucestershire County 
Council (GCC), presented the report on recent road collisions and their causations 
within the County. The report was attached as a supplementary to the agenda for 
this meeting. 

The report had been requested as part of Motion 901 – Road Safety in 
Gloucestershire, which was agreed by full Council at its meeting on 18 May 2022. 
Full details of the motion were included on the agenda for this meeting. 

Members were presented with the key findings following an analysis of data on road 
collisions in Gloucestershire over the last ten years. Members were reminded that 
each of the statistics represented a person affected in some way by a collision. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

It was understood that data from the ten years up to 2022 indicated only a marginal 
fall in fatalities, however a significant increase in people seriously injured in road 
collisions. On average, 25 people a year died on Gloucestershire roads, whilst 
almost 300 were seriously injured, and a further 842 on average slightly injured per 
year. 

It was noted that a high proportion of deaths occurred on trunk roads, such as the 
A417. 48% of fatalities were on single carriageway roads with a 60mph speed limit, 
with the highest proportion of people killed in the Cotswold district in 
Gloucestershire between 2019 and 2021. However, the highest proportion of 
pedestrian and cyclists killed or seriously injured (KSI’s) occurred in Gloucester and 
Cheltenham. These figures reflected the need for a differentiated road safety 
strategy for Gloucestershire that would encompass the high proportion of car users 
within rural areas, as well as the significant numbers of people travelling by walking 
or cycling in urban areas. 

Members were informed that, based on evidence collected at the scene of 
collisions, 48% of collisions were related to speed in Gloucestershire, which was 
similar to the national picture. It was explained that as cars had become larger, it 
had become easier for people to drive faster without realising. This was particularly 
a concern for younger and older drivers who were more vulnerable in terms of their 
perception of risk. 

Philip Williams continued to explain that this data had informed the Council’s draft 
road safety policy. A public consultation on the draft policy was launched in 
Summer 2022, which received over 500 responses. Cabinet would be considering a 
report to adopt the draft policy at its meeting on 23 November 2022.

Members noted that this year the Council had launched the Community Speed 
Watch Fund, in collaboration with the OPCC, as well as the Community 
Approaches to Road Safety toolkit. 

The Committee was provided with an overview of the Vision Zero and Safe System 
approach, which informed the draft road safety policy. The aspiration was for there 
to be zero, or as close to zero, fatalities or serious injuries on Gloucestershire’s 
roads by 2050, with the aim for the number of KSI’s to be reduced by half by 2032. 

Members were informed of the collaborative approach to road safety in the County, 
with the refresh of the Gloucestershire Strategic Road Safety Partnership. 

Members also noted the identification of hotspots for collisions within the County, 
which would be regularly reviewed to inform a programme of engineering works. 

It was requested that an item on GFRS’s approach to road safety, such as in 
education, prevention and responding to collisions, be included on the agenda for 
the next Committee meeting. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

One member commented that it would be useful to have sight of the data for the 
number of vehicles registered in Gloucestershire and the population for the County 
for 2020/21, to provide the context for the road collision data. They also asked how 
partners were collaborating to provide education on road safety. 

It was explained, in response, that GFRS, the Constabulary and the OPCC 
collaborated on the delivery of the ‘What If’ programme for schools. It was also 
understood that the road safety partnership would bring teams together to focus on 
and address priorities for road safety.  

It was requested that Committee members be provided with an overview of the 
hotspot locations in Gloucestershire. 

One member expressed the view that technology was not being used as effectively 
as it could to address road safety issues in the County. 

Another member stated that there needed to be a sufficient budget for partners to 
address road safety in Gloucestershire, particularly in relation to enforcement. 

In response, Philip Williams explained that it was for officers to advise regarding the 
development of budgets. He felt that more funding would be useful for road safety, 
however, it was also important to consider how to use current resources more 
efficiently. 

In relation to enforcement, Nick Evans added that mobile camera vans were 
dispatched to hotspot locations, and that the police were looking into investing in an 
enforcement unit and into increasing the numbers of speed cameras on the roads. 

One member queried the process for the introduction of reduced speed limits. They 
also suggested that road safety statistics be collected more comprehensively to 
include near misses or damage to property. 

In response, Philip Williams assured the member that he would be happy to discuss 
the process for lowering speed limits with them. He also explained that when it 
came to collecting data, the priority was for statistics relating to life and injury. 

Another member commented on the dangers of mobility scooters being used on the 
roads. They added that planning for schools should include drop off and pick up 
facilities for parents. 

Nick Evans advised, in response, that neighbourhood police officers regularly 
attended schools to ensure that parents were parking appropriately, and that 
children at some schools were involved in advising parents on parking. 

69. IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROGRESS UPDATE 

Mark Preece provided the Committee with an update on progress against the 
GFRS Improvement Plan. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

It was noted that 54 of the 105 action points relating to the Causes of Concern had 
been progressed to date. The remaining 51 actions would be commenced over the 
three year period agreed to address them. 

Members were reminded that progress against the Improvement Plan was being 
monitored by the Improvement Board, chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive of 
GCC, which met every 6 weeks. 

Reassurance was sought as to whether there were sufficient resources to ensure 
the actions would be completed within the four year period. 

In response, the CFO explained that GFRS had been successful in securing 38 
additional posts through the MTFS process, and a programme management team 
had been established to prioritise and structure the work to address the plan. 

Another member asked whether HMICFRS was happy with the timescales 
determined within the Improvement Plan. 

It was understood, in response, that HMICFRS had not raised any issues with the 
timescales. A representative from HMICFRS was included on the Improvement 
Board where they could raise any concerns should they arise. 

70. EMERGENCY SERVICES NETWORK PROGRAMME 

Mark Preece introduced the report on the Emergency Service Mobile 
Communication Programme (ESMCP), which would replace the current airwave 
system used by emergency services in the UK. 

Members were informed that the programme had been delayed, in particular  by a 
challenge over the provision of the network. However, GFRS had continued to put 
plans in place so that it would be ready to transfer to the ESMCP when it was rolled 
out, including establishing a team to deal with the transition, and ensuring that new 
vehicles were compatible for both the current and new system. 

Clarification was sought as to the reasons for the delay to the ESMCP roll-out. In 
response, it was explained that currently only one network provider, EE, could 
deliver the programme, which was being challenged. 

It was noted that GFRS was incurring costs due to the need to replace current 
airwave system components as a result of age. 

It was requested that a progress report on the ESMCP be provided at a future 
Committee meeting. 

71. GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES 

Members were presented with the Quarter 2 2022/23 performance data.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

One member observed that only two fifths of GFRS staff were up to date with their 
appraisals, and asked what was being done to address this. 

The CFO explained that appraisals were taking place, however not all managers 
had access to the recording system, which therefore impacted the figures in the 
performance report. 

72. WORK PLAN 2023 

It was suggested that an update on proposals for the fire budget for 2023/24 be 
included on the agenda for the January Committee meeting. 

It was agreed that progress updates on the shared use of Newent and Winchcombe 
Fire Stations, and on GFRS Net Zero Carbon, be moved to the March 2023 
meeting. 

An report on GFRS’s approach to road safety would be added to the January 
agenda. 

73. FUTURE MEETINGS 

It was requested that the November 2023 meeting date be rescheduled in order to 
avoid a clash with any Remembrance Day events. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.30 pm

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 11 November 2022

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Update on Progress 
with GFRS and 
Constabulary/ PCC 
Collaboration 

The Constabulary to consider the viability of the 
joint use of Cheltenham West Fire Station. 

Nick Evans Details regarding this issue 
were included in the written 
brief circulated with 
Committee members on 9 
December 2022. 

263. Update on Progress 
with GFRS and 
Constabulary/ PCC 
Collaboration

To produce a short briefing note summarising the 
verbal update provided at this meeting. 

Nick Evans A briefing note was circulated 
to Committee members on 9 
December 2022. 

350. Update on Progress 
with GFRS and 
Constabulary/ PCC 
Collaboration

To include a further update on progress with 
GFRS and Constabulary/ PCC collaboration, as 
well as with SWAST, on the work plan.

Laura Powick An update has been 
provisionally scheduled for 
the meeting on 26 May 2023. 

451. Motion 901 – Road 
Safety in 
Gloucestershire

To include an item on recommendations for 
GFRS’s approach to road safety, such as in 
education and responding to incidents on the 
agenda for the next meeting. 

Laura Powick This has been added to the 
agenda for 13 January 2023. 

552. Motion 901 – Road 
Safety in 
Gloucestershire

To provide details of the locations of road safety 
hotspots to committee members. 

Philip Williams Action still outstanding. 

653. Emergency Services 
Network Programme

To include an item on progress with the 
Emergency Services Network Programme on the 
work plan. 

Laura Powick This has been added to the 
work plan under future items.

754. Work Plan 2023 To include an item on proposals for the 2023-24 
Fire Budget on the agenda for the next meeting. 

Laura Powick The Committee is to receive 
an overview of GFRS’s 
service plans within the 
context of the draft budget for 
2023/24 at its meeting in 

P
age 9



January. 

855. Future Meetings To move the November 2023 meeting date to 
avoid a clash with the Remembrance Day 
Service. 

Laura Powick The November 2023 meeting 
has been moved to Friday 17 
November 2023. 

P
age 10



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 1 

Working together we will provide the highest standard of community safety and emergency response services to the communities of Gloucestershire 

Introduction/ 
During September to November 2021, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Service (HMICFRS) inspected Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS). This is the 
third inspection of GFRS following the first inspection in July 2019 and the Covid-19 inspection during the autumn 2020. 
The inspectors from HMICFRS carried out their in-depth review of our Service, focusing on how effective and efficient we are and how well we look after our people. Their report was published in 
July 2022, and this is the link to the report. 
The inspection considered three main questions for this cycle of inspections: 

Effectiveness – the operational service provided to the public (including prevention, protection, and response); 

Efficiency – the efficiency of the service (how well it provides value for money, allocates resources to match risk, and collaborates with other emergency services); 

People – how well the service looks after its people (how well it promotes its values and culture, trains its staff and ensures they have the necessary skills, ensures fairness and diversity for the 
workforce, and develops leadership and service capability). 

The Service was found to be ‘requiring improvement’ when considering effectiveness, efficiency and ‘inadequate’ when considering people. The inspection report highlighted 2 Causes of Concern 
(CoC) with 11 Action Points and 34 Areas for Improvement (AFI) and recommended that action be taken to address them. Therefore, the Service has prepared an Improvement Plan. This 
Improvement Plan is owned by senior managers and is updated on a quarterly basis and published as progress is made. 

This report provides a six weekly update of progress in implementing the Improvement Plan against the identified CoC’s and progress summary for the AFI’s noted in the HMICFRS report. 

Executive Summary 
Over the past six weeks overall progress on the 11 recommendation areas have been on target. Following additional capacity in teams work streams are progressing steadily. Challenges in some 
work streams are due to delays in dependent pieces of work.  

Status Number % 
Complete 21 38.89% 
On Track 31 57.41% 
Behind Schedule 0 0.00% 
Overdue 2 3.70% 
Total In Progress 53 

Scheduled 52 
Grand Total 105 

38.89%

57.41%

0.00% 3.70%

Cause of Concern Progress

Complete On Track Behind Schedule Overdue

Page 1 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/frs-assessment/frs-2021/gloucestershire/


Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 2 
 

 

Status Number % 
Complete 23 29.87% 
On Track 41 53.25% 
Behind Schedule 9 11.69% 
Overdue 4 5.19% 
Total In Progress 53   
      
Scheduled 52   
Grand Total 105   

 

 
Action Status Guidance  
Action Status Description  
 On target Work stream is proceeding according to plan  

Risks/issues are being managed within the work stream  
Outputs remain achievable  

 At risk Significant problems identified which may put the work stream timetable, costs and/or benefits at risk 
Remedial plan is in place and is being monitored closely to ensure that risk is mitigated  
Highlight to the next level 

 Compromised Major problems identified which mean the work stream is unlikely to deliver on time, on budget or to required standard 
Remedial plans are not proving effective 
Escalate to the next level with costed options 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29.87%

53.25%

11.69%

5.19%

Areas for Improvement Progress

Complete On Track Behind Schedule Overdue

Page 2 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 12



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 3 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Information Analysis. Use existing, qualitative and 
quantitative, data and capture new focused data to identify 
areas of concern (relating to culture) or good practice.  

• Understanding of areas for 
improvement and identification of 
priority areas for focus. 

Capture and analyse existing data. May-22 23/05/22 31/10/22 Complete 
Capture and analyse existing data, using 
staff surveys and focus groups Jun-22 19/05/22 31/10/22 Complete 

Communication Review. Conduct an independent review of 
how the service communicates with Staff and deliver 
recommendations for improvement. 

• Increased reach of Service 
communications. 

• Communication that resonate with 
all members of GFRS. 

Engage the LGA to conduct the review 
 Complete 01/03/22 01/03/22 Complete 

Commission review 
 Complete 01/05/22 01/05/22 Complete 

Final report feedback to Improvement Board Sep-22 01/09/22 24/11/22 Complete 
Senior Management Engagement. Introduce a timetable of 
Principal Officer engagement visits to increase visibility and 
engagement whilst demonstrating a commitment to service 
values. 

• Increased visible leadership of 
Principal Officer Team. 

• Increased trust and confidence in 
Principal Officer Team. 

• A better understanding of the 
service values and associated 
behaviours. 

Produce timetable of PO visits with a visit to 
each watch and team during 22/23 Mar-22 01/03/22 01/03/22 Complete 

Visits to commence 

Apr-22 01/04/22 01/04/22 Complete 

Improvement Focus Group. Establish a group to ‘road test’ 
recommendations to ensure initiatives are realistic, impactful 
and understand any barriers to change. 

• An effective group that will 
challenge recommendations. 

• A group that has the confidence and 
trust to speak honestly and openly. 

Identify the most effective team composition 
ensuring service-wide representation Mar-22 01/03/22 01/03/22 Complete 

Advertise and select membership Apr-22 01/04/22 01/04/22 Complete 

Cause of 
Concern 

1. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed it’s value 
and associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer  

Recommendation 1.1 Improve how it engages with its staff to gain their commitment to the service’s values and associated behaviours  

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress on this recommendation is complete, with all key milestones finished. 
However, there are some small tasks to complete of which some will move to a business 
as usual process.  
The independent communications peer review was completed 26-28th September by the 
LGA, the accompanying report has been received and is being used to inform the creation 
of draft communication plan and strategy 
Representatives from SIGMUB and ED&I Allies group will attend Improvement Board 
meetings to report progress on their work 

Actions status 
 On target  

 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

Information analysis completed  
Presented draft Communication Plan and Strategy to SLT following feedback from ED&I 
and SIGMUB in November 

 Completed 

X 
Action next 
period: 

Present final version of Communication Plan and Strategy to Improvement Board in December  
Information analysis report to be presented to SIGMUB for consultation at either December or January meeting depending in agenda availability  

Page 3 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 13



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 4 
 

• Service understanding of barriers to 
cultural change. 

Identify barriers to improvement to inform 
future planning Jul-22 18/05/22 01/07/22 Complete 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Information analysis is regularly conducted to capture areas of concern and/or good practice and are escalated/shared through the correct channels  
Following the communication review, ensure changes to communications are regularly reviewed internally and adapted if / where required 
Senior Management continue to be visible and approachable to all members of GFRS  
SIGMUB continues to have regular engagement and input throughout improvement journey, meetings have now been programmed for the remainder of the year.   
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 

Page 4 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 14



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 5 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Develop a vision of a values driven leadership culture. 
Engage with staff to develop a vision, reflecting service values 
and rooted in the purpose of the organisation. 

• A clearly understood and agreed
vision of a values driven leadership
culture that staff buy-into and own.

• People Plan.
• Comms and Engagement Plan.

Engage with independent facilitator to agree 
scope and timeline for work of ‘what does a 
leader in GFRS look like?’ 

Mar-22 01/03/22 01/03/22 Complete 

Facilitate a series of workshops including 
senior leadership, other managers and staff 
groups to develop a clear vision for a values 
driven leadership culture. 

May – 
June 22 01/10/22 31/03/23 On Track 

Utilise Improvement Focus Group to assess 
the likely impact. Jul-22 01/01/23 31/03/23 Scheduled 

Engage with all staff to test, enable 
challenge, revise and finalise. Sep-22 01/01/23 31/03/23 Scheduled 

Development and launch of GFRS People 
Plan. 

Sept 22 – 
Mar 23 01/09/22 01/03/23 On Track 

Develop structured comms and engagement 
plan to embed People Plan. 

Jan – Mar 
23 01/01/23 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Localised Plans. Update team plans with Values Driven 
Leadership Culture and EDI objectives from People Plan. 

• Improvements in culture at team
and service level.
Working towards cultural
improvement seen as business as
usual.

Develop and implement an engagement 
methodology with teams to agree how the 
values driven leadership culture will be 
reflected in team priorities and plans. 

Jan – Mar 
23 01/01/23 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Area Managers to provide assurance and 
scrutiny regarding progress of culture and 
EDI objectives within team plans. 

Apr 23 – 
Mar 24 01/04/23 01/03/24 Scheduled 

Pride in service values. Draft a recognition scheme. Jun – Jul 
23 01/06/23 01/07/23 Scheduled 

Cause of 
Concern 

1. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed it’s value
and associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 1.2 Engage with its staff to develop a compelling vision of the service’s future culture and set out a clear pathway to achieving this which staff can understand and relate to 

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress on this recommendation is on target.  
Above Difference are continuing workshops with staff groups and have assisted SLT with 
creating a draft vision. The OD team are developing the vision in January 2023.  
SLT will be undertaking an intensive roadshow in mid-January 2023 with the service to 
engage and consult on the proposed vision.  
The finalised vision will be articulate and published in the People Plan in April 2023 

Actions status 
 On target 

X 
 At risk 

 Compromised 

Progress made 
this period: 

Continue Above Difference workshops with other managers and staff groups 
Above Difference facilitated leadership retreat with SLT and have developed a draft Vision 
for values led inclusive leadership  

 Completed 

Action next 
period: 

Consultation on draft Vision with SIGMUB at December meeting 06/12/22 
Localised plans will be reviewed in January 2023  

Page 5 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 15



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 6 

Recognise Good Values. Develop a recognition initiative to 
celebrate good work that demonstrates the values, and 
contributes towards the vision. 

Knowledge, understanding and 
demonstration of the cultural vision and 
value. 

Road test with Improvement Focus Group Sep-23 01/09/23 Scheduled 
Communicate and engage with staff. Sep-23 01/09/23 Scheduled 
Revise approach and implementation plan. Oct-23 01/10/23 Scheduled 

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Values driven leadership culture is designed and developed with staff input 
Staff have good knowledge and understanding of the values driven leadership culture and EDI objectives 
Recognition scheme is designed and developed with staff input  
Staff are confident to share good work and best practice through the scheme  
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 

Page 6 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 16



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 7 
 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Values driven leadership. As the critical driving force for 
change develop all Managers as inclusive leaders.   

• Increased workforce engagement 
and involvement in EDI/Cultural 
initiatives. 

• Proactive EDI/Cultural leadership. 

Complete gap analysis to identify 
appropriate training and development 
requirements for existing managers in 
relation to People Plan 

Mar 23 – 
May 23 01/03/23 01/05/23 On Track 

Develop 'Ethical Leadership' training to all 
existing Station Managers as an identified 
target sub culture. 

May-23 01/09/22 01/05/23 On Track 

Provide relevant and regular CPD 
opportunities for Station Managers linked to 
values driven leadership culture. 

Dec-22 01/10/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Add relevant  objectives regarding values 
driven leadership culture to all senior 
manager PDRs. 

Apr-23 01/02/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Fire specific Communication. Communications and training 
material to be developed clearly demonstrating both positive 
and inappropriate behaviour in the work place 

• Communication and training on 
cultural values and behaviours that 
resonates with all staff and has a 
positive effect. 

Source/produce relevant communications 
and training material. 

Dec 22 – 
Mar 23 01/12/22 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Commence publication of a series of fire 
specific scenarios linking them to the values 
linked to launch of People Plan. 

Apr-23 10/01/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Deliver a series of fire specific 
communications that demonstrate the 
negative effects of inappropriate behaviour 

May-23 01/04/23 01/05/23 Scheduled 

 

Cause of 
Concern 

1. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed it’s value and 
associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 1.3 Make sure all staff understand the behaviours which are expected of them and how these relate to the service’s culture 

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target. 
However some action progress has been delayed as the values driven leadership Vision is 
in draft, the annual employee relations report is required to inform training material which is 
due in January 2023 and CPD opportunities can’t be linked to a values driven leadership 
culture until the complete of the People Plan, due in April 2023 
  

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

Allocated specific workloads and tasks to HR/OD advisors 
First SM CPD event is scheduled for December 2022 
 

 Completed 

 
Action next 
period: 

Induction Programme pilot with new managers moved from October to December 2022.  
Seek clarification on the involvement of the communications team and link with training materials 
Request an authorised end date extension to 30/06/23 for two milestones at December PMB as progress is dependent on the completion of the People Plan in April 2023 

Page 7 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 17



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 8 
 

 

 
 
  

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Service staff are aware of training opportunity and materials  
Service staff understand and demonstrate acceptable workplace behaviours and recognise how poor behaviour relates to poor culture  
Staff are confident to challenge and escalate poor behaviour through appropriate channels  
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 

Page 8 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 18



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 9 
 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Analysis. Review and assess the effectiveness of existing 
training relating to the management of inappropriate behaviour. 
Engage with managers to understand barriers to challenging 
inappropriate behaviour 

• Detailed information that can inform 
on planning to support managers. 

Review effectiveness of the current training 
provision in relation to tackling inappropriate 
behaviour 

Mar 23 – 
Apr 23 01/03/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Manager engagement to identify barriers 
and potential support linked to CPD 
sessions. 

Dec-22 01/10/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Data Quality. Expand the information and data collected with 
regards poor behaviour to enable more focused interventions. 

• Accurate and detailed data that 
enables planning for interventions. 

Review information already available and 
identify data required to inform interventions Sep-22 01/10/22 30/11/22 On Track 

Data collection and analysis to identify core 
behaviours that lead to issues. 

Sep – Dec 
22 01/09/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Implement a robust performance 
management framework to inform SLT of 
ongoing activity, trends and interventions. 

Jan - Mar 
23 01/01/23 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Measurement of Effect. Develop a methodology to assess 
the impact of organisational culture initiatives to inform 
planning. 

• The Service understands what 
initiatives are working and where 
appropriate adjust focus and 
resources to maximise effect. 

Produce draft methodology linked to wider 
corporate workforce planning dashboard. 
 

Apr-23 01/01/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Pilot methodology for effectiveness. Jul-23 01/04/23 01/07/23 Scheduled 
Quarterly measurement of effect for values 
driven leadership culture, EDI initiatives and 
Organisational Development.   

Sep-23 01/09/23 01/09/23 Scheduled 

Cause of 
Concern 

1. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed it’s value 
and associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 1.4 Support managers to confidently challenge and manage inappropriate behaviour  

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target.  
SM CPD event is scheduled for mid-December, due to this it is likely that the review of 
current training provision won’t be completed until the end of December 2022.  

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

Allocated specific workloads and tasks to HR/OD advisors 
First SM CPD event is scheduled for December 2022 
Presented report to November SLT on outsourcing an effective mechanism to assist with 
identifying poor behaviour 
GCC HR reviewed internal grievance process 

 Completed 

 

Action next 
period: 

Induction Programme pilot with new managers moved from October to December 2022 and will include an engagement session to identify barriers to challenging inappropriate 
behaviour and collate outcomes  
Annual employee relations report is required to inform training material, due in January 2023 
GCC HR to conduct review of GFRS grievance policy and guidance  

Page 9 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 19



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 10 

Policy. Review relevant policies, supporting guidance and 
training to ensure that they support managers to tackle 
inappropriate behaviour. 

• Policies that support managers and
acts as a guide to challenging
inappropriate behaviour.

HR to review and update policies and 
supporting materials with appropriate 
engagement relating to ‘early intervention’ 
and guidance for manages. 

June - 
Sept 23 01/06/23 01/09/23 Scheduled 

'Road-test' policy with managers, 
representative bodies and staff focus groups 
and adjust accordingly. 

Sep-23 01/07/23 01/09/23 Scheduled 

Develop and implement an appropriate 
communication and engagement plan with 
managers and staff. 

Oct-23 01/09/23 01/10/23 Scheduled 

Training. Deliver appropriate training for supervisory 
managers to help support the development of positive 
behaviours and to tackle inappropriate behaviour. 

• Managers confident and capable in
developing individuals and teams
with the right behaviours and in
challenging inappropriate behaviour.

• Poor behaviour being stopped or
changed early

Use the learning from 11 & 12 above and 
design appropriate training. Dec-23 01/09/23 01/12/23 On Track 

Pilot and review. Mar-24 01/03/23 31/03/24 Scheduled 
Deliver training for all managers. Mar 24 

onwards 01/03/23 31/03/24 Scheduled 

Deliver targeted training during manager’s 
non-operational CPD days. 

Mar 24 
onwards 01/03/23 31/03/24 Scheduled 

Evaluate training and review progress. Ongoing 01/03/23 31/03/24 Scheduled 

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Regular review and analysis of existing training  
Regular review of relevant policies, guidance and training to manage inappropriate behaviour 
Regular feedback from staffing groups/networks 
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually  

Page 10 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 20



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 11 
 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Targeted Training. Deliver holistic training to ensure leaders 
can manage workflow, time and resources efficiently. In 
addition, proactively support their teams to manage their own 
health and wellbeing. 

• Managers with the skills and 
knowledge needed to effectively 
manage workflows.  
Managers with the knowledge to be 
resilient under pressure and the 
confidence to ask for help.  

• Reduction in work related stress. 

Raise manager’s awareness of existing 
training for managing workloads and 
resilience. 

Apr-22 01/04/22 01/04/22 Complete 

Deliver “building resilient teams” and 
“personal resilience and leadership” training 
to all senior managers 

Apr – Jul 
22 25/05/22 31/12/22 On Track 

Deliver stress risk assessment training to all 
managers 

Apr – Jul 
22 22/05/22 31/12/22 On Track 

Monitoring Staff Workloads. Team Plans should be used 
more effectively to track progress and escalate issues with 
workloads and timelines. Managers should be held to account 
to ensure appraisals and 1:1 meetings are taking place. 

• Managers monitoring and 
controlling workloads. 
A process of escalation 

• Reduction in stress absence 

Produce an accurate monitoring process for 
staff appraisals and one to ones Jun-22 19/05/22 31/12/22 On Track 

Appraisals format/ template to be updated 
with a compulsory conversation about 
workloads. 

Dec-22 19/05/22 31/12/22 Complete 

Process of monitoring working hours of HQ 
and supervisory managers. Sep-22 01/09/22 28/02/23 On Track 

 
 

Cause of 
Concern 

1. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed it’s value and 
associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 1.5 Establish effective measures to monitor and manager staff workloads  

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target.   
Collaboration with GCC SHE unit is progressing the stress risk assessment revision and 
extra capacity from the HR OD advisors is ensuring work is progressing. 

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

Stress risk assessment has been developed by the corporate SHE team and is being 
adapted for GFRS 
Annual cycle to be added for PDRs and Quarterly for 1:1s 
PDR questions have been agreed 
Gartan Lead and task appointed 
Preliminary scoping work for working hours has been completed on Gartan 

 Completed 

 

Action next 
period: 

Provide training and pilot new stress risk assessment at SM CPD event in December 2022.  
Working with SHE unit to identify change in practice and put in place an eLearning video for all managers on stress risk assessment  
Add PDR questions to PDRPro by February 2023  
Communications to be created and sent to Service detailing the new PDR process on PDRPro, 1-1 meetings and golden thread 
Submit paper to AM/POs meeting to agree working hours changes to Gartan, aim to make changes by January 2023  

Page 11 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 21



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 12 
 

 

 
 
 
 
  

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Regular review and analysis of management training  
Regular review of relevant policies, guidance and training for managers  
Regular 1:1’s and PDRs  
Regular data analysis for mental health sickness and TOIL 
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 
 

Page 12 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 22



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 13 
 

 
Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 

Timeline 
Started Deadline Status 

Analysis. Review staff access to welfare support to identify 
areas of the service that are not accessible.   

• A Service where all members of 
staff have equal access to welfare 
support. 

Complete accessibility review to identify 
unequal access to support. May-22 30/05/22 01/05/22 Complete 

Engage with staff to identify any welfare 
support mechanisms are not accessible. Jun-22 19/05/22 01/11/22 Complete 

Critical Incident Diffusing. Review the effectiveness of 
critical incident diffusing, to ensure it is effective and 
accessible. 

• Critical Incident Diffusing that 
supports staff. 

• The appropriate level of support for 
FDO's and Diffusers. 

Conduct survey for users of critical incident 
diffusing Sep-22 01/10/22 31/12/22 On Track 

Survey/engage with flexi-duty officers to 
assess effects on diffusers. Sep-22 01/10/22 31/12/22 On Track 

Deliver review document including 
recommendations Dec-22 01/01/23 28/02/23 Scheduled 

Implement improvement recommendations. Jan – Mar 
23 01/03/23 30/04/23 Scheduled 

Access to Support. Ensure all members of staff have 
appropriate access to welfare support when involved in difficult 
situations such as discipline cases. 

• Equal access to staff welfare 
support. 
Increased understanding of welfare 
support available  

• Reduction in mental health 
absence. 

Update guidance materials including 
discipline and grievance policy and 
guidance. 

June  – 
Sept 23 01/06/23 01/09/23 On Track 

Communicate welfare support mechanisms, 
including during engagement.  Consider 
barriers to accessing the support. 

Oct-23 01/08/22 01/10/23 On Track 

Take feedback from those who access the 
support. Nov-23 01/10/23 01/11/23 Scheduled 

 
 

Cause of 
Concern 

1. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed it’s value 
and associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 1.6 Make sure all staff have equitable access to appropriate welfare support  

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target.  
Accessibility review and support mechanisms analysis has been completed and reported to 
SLT with recommendations, this was due to happen in October but was delayed due to a 
lack of team capacity, and this has been rectified with the involvement of the HR advisors.  
Positive collaborative working with GCC is helping to progress milestones  
 

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

Accessibility review of StaffHUB, Cohort, line manager training, OHU and EAP is complete 
Engagement with staff into the welfare support mechanisms lack of accessibility has been 
completed  
Welfare support analysis report presented at SLT in November with recommendations  
Initial engagement with OHU on critical incident diffusing completed  
GCC HR reviewed internal grievance process 

 Completed 

 

Action next 
period: 

Engaging with staff on critical incident diffusing throughout November and December 2022 
GCC HR to conduct review of GFRS discipline and grievance policy and guidance 

Page 13 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 23



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 14 

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Access and engagement with GCC & GFRS Staff networks 
Regular 1:1’s and PDRs  
Regular data analysis for mental health sickness  
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 

Page 14 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 24



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 15 
 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Information Analysis. Use existing qualitative and 
quantitative data and capture new focused data to identify 
areas of concern or good practice relating to EDI. 

• A detailed understanding of service 
areas/groups that need to be 
prioritised for development and 
engagement. 

• Knowledge of what and where the 
issues are. 

Capture and analyse existing data, to 
identify themes and trends within 
underrepresented groups across all areas of 
the service. 

Jun-22 01/06/22 01/06/22 Complete 

Further explore using benchmarking against 
comparative organisations. Jul-22 01/06/22 01/07/22 Complete 

Produce analysis report with 
recommendations for SLT. Sep-22 01/10/22 30/11/22 On Track 

Values driven leadership culture. Engage with employees to 
develop clear EDI objectives aligned to the values driven 
leadership culture to be included in the People Plan 

• Objective and plan owned by the 
workforce.  

• Sense of belonging for employees. 

Engage with EDI Network, improvement 
focus group and Rep Bodies to develop 
values driven leadership culture. 

Jul -Sept 
22 10/01/23 31/03/23 Scheduled 

Undertake engagement with the wider 
service to feedback on draft objectives 
which will be included in the people plan. 

Jan - Mar 
23 01/03/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Impactful Training Material. Utilise external expertise to 
develop meaningful, relevant and impactful engagements and 
training that will improve staff commitment to a positive EDI 
environment. 

• Delivery of training and engagement 
material that resonates with priority 
areas of the service.  
A workplace that has the confidence 
and trust to have open and honest 
conversations about EDI 
appropriately. 

Design and production of training material 
aligned with wider council approach. 
 

Mar 23 – 
May 23 01/03/23 01/05/23 Scheduled 

Pilot material with priority service areas 
identified in the analysis. Jun-23 01/04/23 01/06/23 Scheduled 

Commence training delivery.   July 23 
onwards 01/07/23 31/12/23 Scheduled 

 

Cause of 
Concern 

2. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding 
of the importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to 
establishing EDI in the service 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 2.1 Engage with its staff to develop clear EDI objectives and a plan to increase awareness of EDI and its importance across the organization. This should include understanding and 
addressing the impact positive action is having on staff.  

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on Target.  
EDI Data information analysis has been completed and the report was presented to SLT in 
November  
Above Difference completed workshops with SLT and ED&I Allies group members, all 
training is due to be rolled out by the of March 2023, totalling 134 managers.    
However some action progress has been delayed as the values driven leadership Vision is 
in draft, the annual employee relations report is required to inform training material which is 
due in January 2023 and CPD opportunities can’t be linked to a values driven leadership 
culture until the completion of the People Plan, due in April 2023 
 

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 

Progress made 
this period: 

Above Difference workshops with EDI network, Improvement Focus Group and Rep Bodies  
EDI Data Information analysis has been completed 
EDI Data Information analysis report with recommendations presented at SLT in November 

 Completed 

 
Action next 
period: 

Request an authorised end date extension to 30/06/23 for one milestone at December PMB as progress is dependent on the completion of the People Plan in April 2023 

Page 15 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 25



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 16 
 

 
 

  

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Access and engagement with GCC & GFRS Staff networks 
EDI objectives are accessible and staff have an understanding of the meaning and impact  
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 
 

Page 16 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 26



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 17 
 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Delivery Programme. Deliver a service wide programme of 
engagement and training focusing on EDI, 

• A developed openness to EDI.  
• EDI engagement is seen as 'normal 

business'. 

Undertake workshops to develop values 
driven leadership culture with a specific 
focus on EDI. 

May – Jun 
22 01/09/22 31/03/23 On Track 

Utilise the improvement focus EDI Network 
to assess impact. 

July – Sept 
22 01/01/23 31/03/23 On Track 

Feed EDI network outcomes and objectives 
into the development of the GFRS People 
Plan. 
 

Sep –Mar 
23 01/09/23 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Develop a structured communications and 
engagement plan to embed EDI (Positive 
Action) benefits in line with launch of People 
Plan. 

Jan – Mar 
23 01/01/23 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Develop a structured communications and 
engagement plan to embed EDI (Positive 
Action) benefits in line with launch of People 
Plan. 

Apr 23 
Onwards 01/04/23 01/04/24 Scheduled 

Reinstate core brief outlining SLT decisions. Apr-22 01/04/22 01/11/22 Overdue 

Cause of 
Concern 

2. The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding 
of the importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to 
establishing EDI in the service 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 2.2 Improve how it engages and seeks feedback and challenge from all areas of the service 

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target.  
Members of the ED&I Allies group have created working sub groups so that milestones can 
progress in detail.  
Positive collaborative working with partners is helping to progress milestones  
Two milestones are showing as overdue this is due to sickness absence and annual leave 
 

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

Recruitment of Senior Communications Officer has been successful 
Feedback from workplace visits are being communicated in Ever Forward newsletter in 
themes 
NFCC (Nick Brennan) attended the ED&I Allies October meeting to raise awareness on 
Maturity Models  
Initial discussion with Five Shires has taken place re Say So tool 

 Completed 

 

Action next 
period: 

Clarify the position on Core Brief and frequency of issue 
Understand how feedback collated on station in response to Core Brief/Ever Forward is being collated by Communications team so that delivery is appropriate  
ED&I Allies subgroup completing and submitting maturity model to NFCC for rating 
Continue to investigate if Say So tool will be a good investment for GFRS  

Page 17 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 27



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 18 
 

Senior Leadership Team Cascade and Feedback. 
Information and decisions need to be cascaded to teams by 
managers, effectively. Feedback should be encouraged and 
utilised.  
 

• Increased level of engagement and 
feedback from staff. 
A better informed organisation. 

 

Team managers to discuss the core brief 
with teams and encourage feedback. Apr-22 01/04/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Initiate a process for collecting feedback 
and responding accordingly. Apr-22 01/04/22 01/11/22 Overdue 

Create an 'Ask the Chief' Mailbox that will 
be serviced by the Principal Officers to 
respond to feedback and ideas. 

complete 01/04/22 01/03/22 Complete 

 
 

 
 
 
  

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Access and engagement with GCC & GFRS Staff networks 
Regular 1:1’s and PDRs  
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually  

Page 18 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 28



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 19 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Information Analysis. Use existing data and staff 
engagement to Identify issues affecting the collection of staff 
diversity information. 

• Identification of process issues
relating to the collection of diversity
information.
Identification of trust/confidence or
culture issues.

• Recommendations for improvement.

Review all data collection processes, 
including, Green and Grey Book. Jun-22 09/05/22 01/06/22 Complete 

Use staff surveys and staff engagement to 
identify reasons for low staff uptake. Jun-22 19/05/22 01/10/22 Complete 

Produce paper to SLT identifying 
recommendations for improvement. Sep-22 01/10/22 30/11/22 On Track 

Diversity Data Initiative Develop and deliver a set of 
initiatives to increase the levels that staff declare diversity 
information. 

• Increased staff diversity information
that can be used to progress EDI
projects and organisational
understanding.

Following data review, develop initiatives to 
overcome process barriers.   Oct-22 01/09/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Develop initiatives to overcome culture 
barriers using staff engagement groups. 

Nov - Dec 
22 01/11/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Communicate the use, value and benefits of 
staff diversity data. 

Jan - Mar 
23 01/01/23 01/03/23 Scheduled 

Start to implement and deliver initiatives. Apr 23 
onwards 01/04/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Cause of 
Concern 

2 The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding 
of the importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to 
establishing EDI in the service 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 2.3 Understand the reasons for low declaration of staff diversity information and put in place a plan to address this 

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target. 
Staff Diversity information analysis has been completed and the report with 
recommendations was presented at SLT in November 
The interdependency of the Staff Diversity information analysis report going to SLT and 
ED&I Allies Group in late November, this has impacted the likelihood of the initiative 
development and delivery to be delayed – an extension is being sought at PMB in 
December  

Actions status 
 On target 

X 
 At risk 

 Compromised 

Progress made 
this period: 

Staff Diversity information analysis has been completed  
Staff Diversity information analysis report presentation given to SIGMUB in October  
Staff Diversity information analysis report presentation given to ED&I Allies Group in 
November 
Staff Diversity information analysis report with recommendations presented at SLT in 
November 
Wellbeing & Diversity and Skillzone Volunteers ED&I Presentation delivered 26/10/22 

 Completed 

Action next 
period: 

Request an authorised end date extension to 28/02/2023 for two milestones at December PMB as progress is dependent on the information analysis presented at the end of November 

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Standard practice for new starters 
Regular 1:1’s and PDRs 
Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 

Page 19 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 29



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 20 
 

 

 
 

Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 
Timeline 

Started Deadline Status 

Grievance Review. Review the grievance process and 
develop actions to improve trust and confidence in the 
process. 

• Understanding of process issues. 
Identification of how we can 
increase trust in the grievance 
process.  

• Increased trust and confidence in 
the grievance process 

Review process, take feedback and identify 
reasons for concern about confidentiality 
breaches. 

May-23 01/01/23 01/05/23 Scheduled 

Conduct staff engagement to identify ways 
to increase trust. Jul-23 01/01/23 01/07/23 Scheduled 

Develop and deliver actions for 
improvement. Sep-23 01/01/23 01/09/23 Scheduled 

Liaise with neighbouring services to assess 
the value of inter-service (third party) 
grievance investigations. 

Oct-23 01/01/23 01/10/23 Scheduled 

Implement recommendations. Dec 23 
Onwards 01/12/23 01/12/23 Scheduled 

Training. Link effective grievance training for all managers into 
the wider training plan, include ways to prevent and resolve 
concerns before formal grievances arise.   

• Managers well trained to deal with 
staff grievances. 

Development of relevant training for 
managers. 

July - Nov 
23 22/09/22 01/11/23 On Track 

Development and delivery of conflict 
resolution training for managers as part of 
the wider programme. 

Dec 23 
onwards 22/09/22 01/06/23 On Track 

Identifying Lessons.  
Develop a process that captures key learning from discipline 
and grievance cases to ensure continuous improvement whilst 
protecting anonymity. 

• Continuous improvement and 
confidence in the grievance 
process. 

Develop 'Lessons Learnt' process and 
governance. 

Jun – Sept 
23 22/09/22 01/09/23 On Track 

Test the process with the Improvement 
Focus and EDI groups. 

Jan – Mar 
24 01/01/24 01/03/24 Scheduled 

Cause of 
Concern 

The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding 
of the importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to 

establishing EDI in the service 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 2.4 Assure itself it has effective grievance procedures. It should identify and implement ways to improve staff confidence in the grievance process. 

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target.  
Following successful recruitment of two HR/OD Advisors who are supporting with this 
recommendation. 

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

GCC HR reviewed internal grievance process  Completed 

 
Action next 
period: 

GCC HR to conduct review of GFRS grievance policy and guidance 

Page 20 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 30



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 21 
 

Communicate the changes along with the 
positive outcomes that can be achieved with 
a grievance. 

Apr-24 01/01/24 01/04/24 Scheduled 

 
 

  

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Grievance process is accessible for all staff and support is available to assist understanding 
Grievance process information/policy is included in new starter induction packs 
 

Page 21 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 31



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report  
 

December 2022 22 
 

 
Actions Desired Outcome Key Milestones HMICFRS 

Timeline 
Started Deadline Status 

Information Analysis. Review of Equality Impact 
Assessments and produce a gap analysis. 

• Clear recommendations to inform 
EIA development. 

Review the EIAs for GFRS policies, 
procedures. Jun-22 01/05/22 31/12/22 On Track 

Complete the NFCC Maturity model for 
EIA's to assess the current standard. Sep-22 15/10/22 31/03/23 On Track 

Produce gap analysis and report back to 
SLT. Jan-23 01/12/22 01/01/23 Scheduled 

Implement recommendations complete 
monitoring process. 

Feb 23 
onwards 01/02/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

EIA Development. Review the corporate EIA processes and 
guidance with relevant teams to ensure it is fit for purpose. 

• Increased awareness and usability 
of EIA’s. 

Review template and guidance and revise if 
necessary. Sep-22 01/06/22 01/09/22 Complete 

Road test template to ensure usability. Oct – Dec 
22 01/10/22 01/12/22 On Track 

Equality Impact Assessment Training. All Managers will be 
trained to deliver a meaningful EIA in the workplace. 

EIA training developed for Manager 
Development Programmes. 

Jan – Mar 
23 01/01/23 01/03/23 On Track 

Cause of 
Concern 

2 The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding 
of the importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to 
establishing EDI in the service 

Lead: Jean Cole, Assistant Chief Fire Officer 

Recommendation 2.5 Improve the understanding and use of equality impact assessments in all aspects of its work, and consider if its policies and procedures are inclusive and support those with protected 
characteristics.  

Comment about 
overall status 

Overall progress for this recommendation is on target  
Members of the ED&I Allies group have created working sub groups so that milestones can 
progress in detail.  
Positive collaborative working with partners is helping to progress milestones  
Training is tentatively planned for the New Year but subject to costing approval  

Actions status 
 On target  

X 
 At risk 

 
 Compromised 

 
Progress made 
this period: 

NFCC (Nick Brennan) attended the ED&I Allies October meeting to raise awareness on 
Maturity Models  
NFCC (Penny Newton) attended the ED&I Allies November meeting to share information 
on new EQIA forms and their importance  
ED&I Allies Group and Staff Improvement Focus Group consulted on EQIA forms in 
November.  
EQIA form “road tested” in November. 
Bespoke training tentatively planned for all managers in early 2023  subject to cost 
approval  
Tentative dates in January 2023 planned for EQIA training subject to cost approval  
Continued to review policies with GCC re introducing a GCC-wide EQIA policy and form    

 Completed  
 

Action next 
period: 

ED&I Allies Group discussing Positive Action in December meeting 
ED&I Allies subgroup completing and submitting maturity model to NFCC for rating 
Continue to review policies with GCC re introducing a GCC-wide EQIA policy and form   
Seek approval for training costs for January 2023  

Page 22 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 32



Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service – Improvement Highlight Report 

December 2022 23 

• Managers competent to deliver
effective good quality EIA’.

Training to be delivered to existing 
Managers. Apr-23 01/03/23 01/04/23 Scheduled 

Regular updates to be delivered through 
Managers non-operational CPD events. 

Apr 23 
onwards 01/04/23 01/03/24 Scheduled 

Management and Assurance.  Implement an assurance and 
review process for equality impact assessments alongside 
relevant council teams 

• A well-managed, well governed EIA
process.

Design an assurance process with EDI 
Network scrutiny. May-23 01/04/23 01/05/23 Scheduled 

Implement assurance process and scrutiny Jun-23 01/04/23 01/06/23 Scheduled 

What we will do to ensure this recommendation continues as good practice and sustains change 

Staff survey results are analysed and actioned annually 
Regular review and adaption of equality impact assessments  
Regular review of policies and procedures working with GCC & GFRS Staff networks 

Page 23 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

P
age 33



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

1 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

 

MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING 
Date : Thursday, 1st December 2022    

Time : 14:30 
Venue: via Microsoft Teams and in person at  
Coaley Meeting Room, Shire Hall, Gloucester 

 
Attendees:- 
Steve Mawson (SM) (Chair) Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director Corporate Resources 
Mark Preece (MP)  Chief Fire Officer  
Clive Webber (CW) (Teams) Interim Assistant Chief Fire Officer  
Mark Hawthorne (MH) Leader of the Council 
Mandy Quayle (MQ) Director of Digital and People Services 
Cllr Dave Norman (DN)  County Councillor - Cabinet Member for Fire, Community Safety and 

Libraries 
Jean Cole (JC)  (Teams) Assistant Chief Fire Officer 
John Robertson (JR) (Teams) HMICFRS - Service Liaison Lead – Cornwall; Isles of Scilly; Gloucestershire 
Board Apologies:-  
Darren Skinner (DS) Head of Planning, Performance & Improvement 
Chris Strickland (CS) Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive Officer (Cambridgeshire Fire and 

Rescue Service) and NFCC Improvement Committee Chair 
Emily McGuinness (EMc) Programme Manager, Local Government Support, LGA 
Rob Ayliffe (RA) Director of Policy, Performance and Governance 
Standing Invitation:-  
Mel Cooksey  (MC) Comms Business Partner 
Apology from Standing Invite:-  
Sherrill Holder Head of Digital and Business Relationships 
Observers:-  
Becky Austin-White Project Manager 
Nathan Hine Graduate 
Focus Group Representatives:-  
Imran Dean Cultural and Inclusion Manager – representing ED&I Allies 
Jo Singh Station Manager – representing ED&I Allies 
Matt Prentice Watch Manager – representing Service Improvement Group – Making Us 

Better (SIGMUB) 
Minutes:  
Gill Hickman GFRS Improvement Officer 

 

 

No. 
 

 Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies (SM) 
 

 

 Introductions took place around the room as there were ‘new faces’ in 
attendance. 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and the apologies were noted.   
 
EMc sent a late apology owing to her being called to an urgent meeting 
today; the other Board member apologies were long-standing.   
 
RA had been invited to the meeting in place of DS who was on annual leave, 
but sent apologies. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 34



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

2 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

 

CW has temporarily replaced Gavin Roberts on the Board as Interim Assistant 
Chief Fire Officer until the new GFRS Deputy Chief Fire Officer, Nathaniel 
Hooton, takes up his position in January 2023. 
 
The chair welcomed and thanked the three Focus Group Representatives for 
attending the meeting today. 
 
External Scrutiny/Apologies 
 
A comment was made about the importance of external scrutiny at IB 
meetings and that something is lost in its absence.  A short discussion took 
place about the level of priority which is being given to external scrutineers 
to aid their attendance, enabling them to meet their commitment to support 
this IB.  Action : MP to discuss with CS at their next monthly catch-up 
meeting.   Please refer to Appendix A (on page 13 of these minutes) for a 
schedule of apologies received to date for IB meetings, which are currently 
arranged around the diaries of SM/MP/JC/DN/MH. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MP/CS 

2. A Conversation with Representatives from ED&I Allies 
 

 

 A report following the ED&I Allies meeting on 27/10/2022 was circulated 
with the agenda and meeting papers (Page 3), and included a schedule 
showing the make-up/membership of the group (Page 12).   
 
At the last Improvement Board meeting, members requested that four 
specific questions be asked of this group.  The questions with the responses 
received to date were circulated with the meeting papers (Page 13). 
 
Imran Dean (ID) and Jo Singh (JS) represented ED&I Allies. 
 

i) ID explained that JS was shadowing him at this meeting with a 
view to attending the next Improvement Board meeting as the 
‘main’ representative with another member of the group 
shadowing her, the idea being to help bring familiarity to the 
potentially intimidating situation in advance of attending as the 
main representative for the group; 

ii) Reference was made to the report of the most recent ED&I 
Allies meeting which was circulated with the agenda and 
meeting pages (Page 3); 

iii) Reference was made to the introduction of sub-groups formed 
from the main group.  Sub groups will have specific 
responsibility to focus proactively on areas defined in the 
HMICFRS Improvement Plan (Communication, Positive Action, 
Training & Development, Project Development (Neurodiversity) 
and Community Engagement) bringing their lived experience, 
research and good practice both inside and outside of the 
Service; 

iv) In order to maximise representation and expertise, people of 
heritage and communities of interest will be invited onto sub 
groups in an advisory capacity as people with a different 
understanding, passion and lived experience, to support our 
decision-making; people outside of the Service are already 
being invited to speak at ED&I Allies including NFCC to support 
in the development of maturity models, and included on the list 
are AFSA to support our positive action and specialist agencies 
to educate us about neurodiversity;  Action : JC/MC to consider 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JC/MC 
 

Page 25 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 35



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

3 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

linking with Councillor Sajid Patel for voices from the 
community; 

v) ED&I Allies meetings currently take place roughly every six
weeks and from January, meeting time is being extended from
half a day to a whole day.  The main business of the group will
take place for one half of the day as previously, and the other
half will allow sub groups time to develop and influence their
identified areas of work;

vi) The Zero Tolerance Statement relating to racism, which had
been the topic of a paper presented at a recent SLT meeting,
was brought for discussion to the wider group with an
explanation about how and why the statement came to be
initiated in 2020; at that time, it had been drafted with the
involvement of nine organisations (Fire Brigades Union, Fire &
Rescue Service Association, Fire Officers Association, Fire
Leaders Association, UNISON, UNITE, GMB, GFRS and GCC);

vii) It was felt that SLT had responded in a disappointing way to the
paper presented at their recent meeting in terms of not
agreeing to the immediate and unconditional removal of the
statement because the statement is having a negative impact
on mental health and wellbeing of certain members of the
workforce.  At the recent ED&I Allies meeting there was a
consensus that the statement should be removed because of
the negative impact it is having;

viii) The rationale for retaining the statement in place until it can be
appropriately replaced was given; it did not relate to arguing
with the paper but to ensuring the right focus was maintained
to support the co-creation of something which replaces it; SLT is
already planning and putting steps in motion to elicit feedback
from every department and station to support delivery of the
replacement co-created statement about expected ‘right’
behaviours;

ix) A lengthy discussion took place.  The depth of feeling and
emotion was acknowledged and support was offered to help
resolve the situation in the right and best way;

x) Both internal and external comms and engagement again
became a significant part of the conversation and a meeting has
already been scheduled with MC this week to consider an ED&I-
related comms strategy;  it was acknowledged that a comms
strategy isn’t yet in place and work on it isn’t progressing as
quickly as it should be – despite significant efforts;

xi) Urgent Action : MP/MC – It was agreed that a positively drafted
response statement to the Zero Tolerance Statement - Racism
should be issued as soon as possible with clarity around why we
are doing and not doing certain things – a statement that can be
stood behind if challenged by the unions, the workforce or the
press.

A comment was made that the ‘rawness’ of the situation was not intended to 
be demonstrated at this meeting because the work of the Allies is more 
important. 

Notwithstanding, the discussion was welcomed and colleagues were thanked 
for bringing this perspective and for the challenge it provided.   

MP/MC 

3. A Conversation with a Representative from the SIGMUB group 

Page 26 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 36



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

4 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

 

 A report following the SIGMUB meeting on 31/10/2022 was circulated with 
the agenda and meeting papers (Page 9), and included a schedule showing 
the make-up/membership of the group (Page 12).   
 
At the last Improvement Board meeting, members requested that four 
specific questions be asked of this group.  The questions with the responses 
received to date were circulated with the meeting papers (Page 13). 
 
Matt Prentice represented SIGMUB. 
 

i) The group is made up of a diverse cross-section of roles within 
the Service who discuss, review, feedback and progress the 
cultural improvements we wish to make; in terms of 
representation, IB members were referred to Page 12 in the 
agenda pack; 

ii) Honesty and openness is encouraged and a safe place is 
created; it was felt that group members had ‘bought in’ and 
were confident to feed back;  

iii) For broader feedback, IB members were referred to the 
Questions raised by IB members at the last IB meeting on 
27/10/2022 (referred to in Page 13 in the agenda pack) “How 
do we make sure this group is representative?”, “How do we 
make sure the comms messages get through?”, How are people 
communicating and do they feel listened to?” and “How is the 
best way to connect with those who may find they are in a 
difficult position, to encourage their reporting?” with Answers 
provided by some members from each of the SIGMUB and ED&I 
Allies groups; 

iv) In terms of communicating information about the work of the 
group, it was confirmed that as an individual this happened; 
‘homework’ has previously been given to the group to seek 
information and views from their immediate colleagues and 
formally return the feedback – however, there is not 100% 
coverage on the group across all departments and teams in the 
service (as highlighted on Page 12 of the agenda pack); 

v) There is a general belief that the culture is broken and from the 
ground, it is noted that many have ‘quietly quit’ i.e. doing ‘their 
bit’ but no more; 

vi) Do I think the service and the POs know how to fix it?  There is a 
definite willingness.  Have we figured out how to improve?  We 
haven’t done that yet; 

vii) A perspective is that there is not a culture of excellence; 
viii) We should be the jewel in the crown of GCC; 
ix) We are an emergency service that the public hold in high 

regard; 
x) The biggest thing is that we want to be the best and 

professional; what does excellent look like, not what is cheapest 
and easiest; that would start to change the culture; 

xi) We are not the very best.  We don’t have enough people, 
direction, policies and procedures in place; 

xii) Question : What would be the first thing you’d change?  An 
example of what is seen as an issue is the cost of £175k that is 
being spent on the culture and diversity training across all junior 
officers because we don’t have enough people on fire engines, 
we are not doing the latest things, using the latest techniques, 
we are not progressive.  The money could have driven forward a 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 37



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

5 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

lot of things.  Not a single person I am on the course with has 
disagreed that the training is interesting; 

xiii) People don’t want to send their fire kit off for washing because
they will have to use a loan kit; there aren’t enough thermal
imaging cameras, there are no emergency evacuation whistles –
the little things make a big difference;

xiv) Question : Both groups are essentially representing the wider
workforce - how are you making sure that everyone in the
service knows that if they can’t go to a line manager or senior
manager, they can come to you?  Answer : An item about the
group was published in the newsletter and it seems to be
‘getting out there’ that people can talk to us but you also pick
up a vibe.  I appreciate that some people do not want to speak
honestly to the POs because of the past culture of penalisation.
My view is that if we don’t say, we have no chance of making it
better;

xv) It was acknowledged, and the point was taken on board that,
the two groups are not as well known as they should be and
more needs to be done.  Dedicated pages on Staffhub for both
groups to help promote the work they are doing is under
discussion;

xvi) DN is in the course of visiting every On Call and Whole-time fire
station and confirmed that the information coming back to him
is that internal comms is a huge issue and must improve as the
messages ‘are not getting out’;

xvii) DN noted that on his visits he believes the workforce are
opening up to him in a way that doesn’t happen when the POs
visit;

xviii) DN is collecting feedback and has made a personal promise to
respond – historically we have failed to respond;

xix) Action : POs - DN wanted special note to be taken that ‘every
On Call station is different’ and urged that if SIGMUB and ED&I
Allies are not reaching out far enough, that POs ensure that
within a 6-month period, everyone is visited and has the chance
to meet with them direct;

xx) On a positive note, DN advised that three new members of staff
he spoke to have joined from three other separate services.
They knew there were issues with GFRS but they each had
concerns about the services from which they came;

xxi) Action : POs – Following AM/PO visits the messages need to be
issued much more quickly; at the end of a ‘tour’ of around six
months is much too late.  Tell people ‘this is what we heard and
this is what we are going to do’, or ‘we are not sure about this
one’, or ‘this is an easy win’.

Communication and Engagement Gaps:- 

xxii) Having the right tools and kit to do the job is not an either/or –
it is a must.  The representatives of the two focus groups were
asked to pass this clear message back to colleagues in the
Service;

xxiii) We are buying cheap kit - The counter-argument was put
forward in terms of recent funding approval for Fire to the tune
of around £1.25M and that bids, when supported by clear
rationale, were and remain positively responded to;

xxiv) £3.6M is currently available to spend on appliances – vehicles
have not yet been ordered because we want to engage with

Principal 
Officers 

Principal 
Officers 

Page 28 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 38



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

6 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

staff and involve them in the decision-making process before 
the order is placed – and consultation with stakeholders is 
currently taking place; 

xxv) We are currently trialling 5 sets of lightweight rescue jackets
because we want to engage with staff and involve them in the
decision-making process before the order is placed;

xxvi) Whistles – there is a feeling or perception that staff cannot ask,
but with a clear rationale, all requests will be listened to;

xxvii) New trucks, clean cabs and positive pressure ventilation – two
sides of a perspective were discussed and it transpired that
there was a misconception by both sides.  The level of
information exchanged in this discussion proved to be
extremely important and a question was raised about where
and what would be an appropriate forum for having such
debates;

xxviii) Counter perception : Why do Fire always get what they want?

Final comments:- 

xxix) Don’t get disheartened.  It has been a really powerful afternoon
with honest appraisal about what it feels like out on the front
line;

xxx) There are a bottleneck of issues that are slowly being worked
through;

xxxi) There will be a time lag in people’s perceptions;
xxxii) The conversations have showcased ED&I and culture.  If this

strength of feeling has been generated in the room, consider
how this might be amplified out on stations;

xxxiii) Messaging must demonstrate that everyone is important
whether you wear uniform or not;

xxxiv) A significant level of complexity was recognised and establishing
the building blocks towards improvement feels like a longer-
term issue.  All that was highlighted by HMI it is still there.

Representatives from SIGMUB and ED&I Allies were thanked for their 
feedback as being “absolutely invaluable”. 

4. Minutes of last Meeting (SM) 

The minutes of the last meeting were approved as an accurate record. 

5. Actions from last meeting (SM) 

Outstanding Action for JC/EMc – Minutes of a meeting dated 07/09/2022.  
Page 2, Minute 3.7 

JC confirmed that she and EMc had had the conversation about the potential 
application of the RACI model and the impact of this on the Action Plan, and 
she will bring the comments to the meeting next week between herself, MQ 
and SM.  This action is now closed. 

JC confirmed that the majority of actions with the “MP” reference from the 
last meeting on 20/10/2022 are dealt with and closed (these are detailed on 
the Actions Log pages 10-12 of these minutes).  This also relates to actions 
attributed to “MC”. 

Page 29 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 39



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

7 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

 

6. 
 

Update on Implementation of Programme Team (JC)  
 

 

  
 

The org chart for the Programme Team was circulated with the agenda and 
meeting papers (Page 28). 
 
JC stated that we have moved significantly forward:- 
 

i) Programme Manager interview is week commencing 
05/12/2022; 

ii) Data Analyst role – shortlisting week commencing 05/12/2022; 
iii) Project Support – position currently being created. 

 

 
 
 

7. Progress Report – 21st October to 30th November 2022 (MP) 
 

 

 The Progress Report was circulated with Version 2 of the agenda and meeting 
papers (pages 29-51). 
 
MP was asked to report exceptionally giving feedback on key points only in 
place of running through the whole report.  
 
MP advised that:- 
 

i) An immense amount of work is being undertaken and progress 
is good; 

ii) Of the 104 actions, only 9 are scheduled to complete into 2024 
meaning that 95% of the work is expected to complete by the 
end of 2023; 

iii) All the work is either On Track or Scheduled (i.e. not yet due to 
start) save for those related to the core brief which will be 
discussed later in the agenda by MC; 

iv) In line with a discussion from a previous IB meeting, additional 
milestones are being added to help ensure that we stay on the 
correct journey; 

v) With additional resource due into the team, it is expected that 
progress will speed up in the early part of next year; 

vi) Action : MP/JC/MC – to ensure that we celebrate successes and 
progress with the Improvement Plan in comms messages. 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MP/JC/MC 

8. Comms Update – LGA Peer Review and the plan to address feedback and 
the Action Plan (MC) / Deep Dive 

 
 

 The LGA Peer Review and the Comms Action Plan were circulated with the 
agenda and meeting papers (pages 52-76). 
 
MC made reference to the report and Action Plan:- 
 

i) Overall, the report highlighted that there was a lack of clear 
narrative that is compelling to everyone;  

ii) MC is currently visiting stations with DN (referred to in 3 xvi-xviii 
above) to gain first-hand knowledge; 

iii) Issues mainly relate to internal comms and an audit (which 
needs to be undertaken) will help us understand what, if any, 
channels the workforce is using and what the access barriers 
are; 

iv) The new Digital Comms Officer and the new Senior Comms 
Officer are due to start in January and this additional resource is 
expected to accelerate progress; 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 40



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

8 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

 

v) Actions resulting from the Peer Review Report and colour-
coded progress are identified on the Action Plan; 

vi) The difficulties faced from the comms point of view were fully 
acknowledged as being Herculean in that we are trying to drive 
change via messages we hope will ‘land’ with a diverse 
workforce that is dispersed over 21 separate sites; 

vii) Approval was expressed for plans already underway for SLT 
Roadshows commencing 23/01/2023, providing a solid 
engagement opportunity for ‘detailing what are you selling’; 
timing is set to coincide with when the workforce is mostly 
present and there are fewer annual leave bookings – and before 
likely industrial action is taken in February; 

viii) Strong Steer - Action : MP/JC/MC – a strong steer was given, 
emphasising the need to deeply consider the message being 
delivered so that it ‘lands’ well and so that no fault is 
inadvertently attributed; 

ix) It was acknowledged that a ‘single bullet’ won’t work and that 
significant thought will need to be given to ‘getting right’ a 
variety of different messages delivered in a variety of different 
ways to a diverse audience including On Call, Wholetime and 
Green Book staff, those who ‘get you’ and those who don’t; 

x) Action : MP/JC/MC – challenge from the Chair : what is the 
message you are trying to communicate as this is currently 
missing? 

xi) Action : MP/JC/MC – to produce a quarterly plan on a page 
detailing What, When and How using the action plan as a 
starting place. 

 
Finally, words of encouragement were offered recognising the significant 
additional thought applied meaning that positive and constructive plans are 
already under way.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MP/JC/MC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MP/JC/MC 
 
 

MP/JC/MC 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9. Update following HMICFRS Revisit 14th to 17th November 2022 (JC) 
 

 

 JC/JR gave the following update:- 
 

i) It is not possible to share any feedback from this revisit at this 
stage but the formal response will be issued by HMICFRS 
around mid/end January and will be shared at the earliest 
opportunity; 

ii) Events relating to the revisit were well organised and those 
involved were thanked; 

iii) Those involved in giving feedback were fully engaged and this 
was appreciated. 

 

 
 
 

10. FPOG Update (MP) 
 

 

 MP advised that:- 
 

i) The next meeting at the Home Office is scheduled for 
12/01/2023 and MP and DN will attend when it is expected that 
the discussion will be centred on the recent HMICFRS revisit in 
November; 

ii) For the information of IB members, there are a series of other 
meetings due to take place in advance of the FPOG meeting on 

 

Page 31 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 41



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

9 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

12/01/2023 when we will need to demonstrate what has been 
done in the interim since the last FPOG meeting. 

11. Deep Dive (JC) 

The Deep Dive topic today was “Communication and Engagement – how will 
we keep GFRS up to date about the work we are doing on the action plan?”   

This discussion was covered in agenda item 8 above. 

Action : JC – Deep Dive for the IB meeting on 12/01/2022:- 

i) Combine Topics 2 and 3 together with a view to splitting them
out into separate topics if appropriate afterwards as follows…

ii) Topic 2 – Data Analysis on Workloads (CoC 1.5 – Establish
effective measures to monitor and manage staff workloads) and

iii) Topic 3 – Recruitment and understanding the ethnicity issues
(CoC 2.3 – Understand the reasons for low declaration of staff
diversity information and put in place a plan to address this).

JC 

12. Future Meeting Dates/Frequency (JC) 

As discussed, it has not been possible to arrange 6-weekly meetings after the 
IB meeting on 26/04/2022.  This is due to other diary commitments for SM, 
MP, JC, MH and DN.   

Future IB meeting dates have currently been set as follows:- 

Thursday, 12th January 2023 (14:00) 
Thursday, 2nd March 2023 (14:00) 
Wednesday, 26th April 2023 (14:00) 
Thursday, 22nd June 2023 (14:00) 
Thursday, 14th September 2023 (10:00) 
Thursday, 9th November 2023 (14:00) 
Thursday, 18th January 2024 (10:00) 

13. Additional Business 

Action : SM/MP/DN - this is advance notice to prepare to deliver an 
Improvement Board update to the Fire Scrutiny Committee which sits on 13th 
January, the day after the next Improvement Board meeting. 

Meeting closed at 16:35 

SM/MP/DN 

  Signed:     Approved for circulation by Steve Mawson  Date:  20/12/2022 

   Chair 

Page 32 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 42



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

10 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

Actions Log 

Date of 
Meeting 

Page 
No. 

Minute 
No. 

Action Required By 
Whom 

20/10/2022 1 3.1 Action : JC and EMc are meeting on 25/10/2022 to discuss the outstanding action regarding the 
methodology, Responsibility/Accountability/Consult/Inform (RACI).   Action : JC - An update is 
requested at the next Improvement Board meeting to understand how this will impact on the 
Action Plan. 
Action closed. 

JC/EMc 

JC 

20/10/2022 3 4 Action : All – please report recruitment progress updates in the interim (electronically before 
the next Improvement Board meeting).  Where we appoint internally, we must expedite their 
move into post, especially in the light of the 14/11/2022 revisit from HMI. 
Action : MP to update John Robertson on this positive progress. 
Action closed. 

All 

MP 
20/10/2022 3 5 

iii) 
Action : MP - Page 13 of the circulated report – (1.1.1)   a) Clarity was requested in connection 
with the two Key Milestones regarding capturing and analysing existing data – and using staff 
surveys and focus groups.  What is the difference between these two milestones?  Make clear 
the surveys which are being referred to e.g. GCC/HMI staff survey and      b) the analysis of the 
HMI surveys must be completed as a priority; 
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 3 5 
iv) 

Action : MP - Page 13 of the circulated report – (1.1.3) relating to the engagement of senior 
management with staff.  Visits are complete but the Desired Outcome needs expansion to 
include building in how we will continue to and regularly be visible in the future, bringing this 
into business as usual; 
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 3 5 v) Comment – Action MP/MQ : To avoid this becoming a ‘tick box exercise’ showing that a 
process has been completed in that surveys have been undertaken, we must ensure that we 
are achieving qualitative feedback, demonstrating that we understand and are listening to the 
messages emerging from our staff.  There is a desire to see reflected in the action plan, training 
in place for senior and team leaders, which will develop them into good communicators.  
Communication is a fundamental issue within the Service and there is an expectation that MQ 
(HR) and Adam Barnes (Comms) would support the implementation of this kind of training 
course.   
Action closed. 

MP/MQ 

20/10/2022 4 5 
vii) 

Action : MP/MQ - Page 15 of the circulated report (1.2.1) – a question was asked about how 
we are analysing the impact of the training delivered to individuals.  For example, asking them 
questions such as ‘where did this take us’, ‘what are the next steps’, ‘do we feel in the same 
place’, ‘am I more confident to engage’ i.e. the So What questions?  What has the training 
done? 
Action closed. 

MP/MQ 

20/10/2022 4 5 
viii) 

Action : MP/SH - It was noted that many of the end dates for this action were a long way into 
the future.  It had been accepted at previous Improvement Board meetings that time will be 
needed in some instances, but that we must communicate to the workforce along the distance 
of the journey.  It was also noted that some of the work with extended end dates is already 
taking place.  MP will review with leadership colleagues the potential to break this section into 
sub headings to assist with measuring the journey and giving visibility for communication 
purposes.  SH will review the Tracker milestones and consider other possible options to 
demonstrate the interim position and progress towards end dates; 
Action closed. 

MP/SH 

20/10/2022 4 5 x) Action : MP - Page 17 of the circulated report – 1.3.  It was felt that currently the progress 
shown does not speak sufficiently about the calling out of poor behaviour as seen in the 
Service.  A lengthy discussion took place and to demonstrate some of the issues which arise, 
some examples were offered about the ways in which racism (which MP confirmed is never left 
undealt with) is tackled.  The discussion ranged from the care required when communicating 
the calling out of poor behaviour, to the absolute need for full assurance and clarity that in a 
public service, racism in all its forms is not tolerated, with every member of staff being told so 
on an individual basis if necessary.   A number of different points were raised, demonstrating 
that there is a significant distance to go to satisfy this action and progress should be reviewed 
with this in mind.  
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 4  5 
xi) 

Action : MP - Page 21 of the circulated report (1.5.1) – It was assumed that the stress-causing 
work referred to related to other than firefighting work.  The reason for introducing additional 

MP 

Page 33 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 43



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

11 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

 

resource was to reduce workloads.  Feedback was requested on this action (either from PDRs 
or supportive discussions) to gain an understanding about whether or not the new 
appointments have meant that work levels causing work-related stress are diminishing.    
Action closed. 

20/10/2022 4 5 
xii) 

Action : MP - Page 23 of the circulated report (1.6) – Feedback was required as to progress 
made to date on this action to ensure all staff have equitable access to appropriate welfare 
support.  Please seek this feedback from the Service Improvement Group and ED&I Allies 
Group.    
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 5 5 
xiii) 

Action : MC - Page 25 of the circulated report (2.1) – A question was asked about what 
specialist recruitment we are doing in our BME communities to broaden the pool of applicants 
for jobs, to demonstrate what we are striving to be.  MC and others to consider that we may 
not have the skillset within GCC for an external campaign to promote our fire service, and to 
consider other options available.  Action : All – please keep MC/Comms as as fully up to date as 
possible, as early as possible, to enable full embracing and understanding by that team to 
promote positive messages and dispel negativity.  Currently, the comms function is not 
sufficiently linked in.   
Action closed. 

MC 

20/10/2022 5 5 
xiv) 

Action : MC - Page 27 of the circulated report (2.2) – In terms of improving how it engages and 
seeks feedback and challenges from all areas of the Service, questions were asked about how 
the information is disseminated and then feedback collected and collated.  Assurances were 
given that managers go to stations every Thursday with an agenda by way of e.g. ‘Ever Forward’ 
(the Improvement newsletter) and the core brief showing SLT decisions.  The format is that of a 
‘tool box talk’ and the intention is of a 2-way discussion with feedback being collected by 
managers which is fed back.  Elements of this process are undergoing final detail checks to 
ensure they work well e.g. the core brief production is close to being finalised.   MC will provide 
an update at the next Improvement Board meeting. 
Action closed. 

MC 

20/10/2022 5 5 
xv) 

Action : MC - Members of the Board provided feedback on the latest publication of ‘Ever 
Forward’ which was produced in hard copy at the meeting.  It was considered to have far too 
many words, is in management speak and needs more pictures.  It should aim to be the ‘family 
letter’ that is about pride and that includes core messages.  The newsletter format/content 
needs ‘to be sorted out and sharpened up’.  MC commented that the new dedicated Comms 
Officer would provide the resource to develop and improve this publication. 
Action closed. 

MC 

20/10/2022 5 5 
xvi) 

Action : MP - Page 29 of circulated report (2.3) – A question was raised about April being too 
far away as an end date for this action (in connection with the low declaration of staff diversity 
information) and MP was asked to review this end date, considering if this may be addressed 
during the PDR process to bring a response forward. 
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 6 6 i) Action : MP – A comment was made that a GCC induction pack which was handed to a WM/CM 
on station recently to support with the induction of a new recruit didn’t reference GFRS local 
induction requirements – MP to follow this up to ensure that the GFRS version is also available 
on stations. 
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 6 6 ii) Action : MQ - A lengthy discussion took place about the GCC survey and the responses given in 
the update from the Service Improvement Group – in particular about a wide variance in the 
time it took to complete.  MQ will review the discrepancy about time taken to complete and 
will provide feedback.  She will also consider whether or not an On Call version of the survey is 
appropriate. 
Action closed. 

MQ 

20/10/2022 6 6 
iii) 

Action MC : It was confirmed that On Call firefighters can now  access the intranet from any 
device and this needs to be communicated.  They no longer need to be on station for access. 
Action closed. 

MC 

20/10/2022 6 6 
iv) 

Action : MP - The point was made that people take the survey more seriously if they can see 
the impact of it.  The Service Improvement Group is a place to have conversations about Fire-
specific feedback and from which to take the learning especially about how it influences the 
Plan.  Responses for Fire this year were 44% (without On Call) which was up on last year at 33%.  
The overall average for the organisation is 59%. 

MP 

20/10/2022 6 6 v) Action : MP - The chair acknowledged the report from the Service Improvement Group and its 
contents and recommended the survey question is revisited at a point in the future. 
Action closed. 

MP 

Page 34 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 44



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

12 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

20/10/2022 6 6 
vi) 

Action : MC - The meeting agreed that engaging the Service Improvement Group and reporting 
back to the Improvement Board was good, but the workforce should also be told about the 
work of this group.  ‘Ever Forward’s’ latest edition includes information about the purpose of 
the group and a photograph of the members.  MC commented on the wider longer-term piece 
of work around the joining-up of intranets to avoid duplication of work. 
Action closed. 

MC 

20/10/2022 6 7 ii) Action : MP – to raise the following questions with this group and provide feedback:- 
a. How do we make sure you are representative?
b. How do we make sure that the comms are getting through?
c. How are people communicating and do they feel listened to?
d. How is the best way to connect with those who may find they are in a difficult

position, to encourage their reporting?
Action closed. 

MP 

20/10/2022 7 10 Action : MP:- 
1. Communication plans – referred to in 5 ix) “Comment” above.  How are we going to

keep GFRS staff up to date with the work we are doing on the Action Plan?
2. Data analysis on workloads referred to in 5 xi) above (collected from PDRs and

support meetings);
3. Recruitment and understanding the ethnicity issues referred to in 5 xvi) above.

Action closed. 

MP 

01/12/2022 2 1 Action : MP to discuss with CS – external scrutiny MP/CS 
01/12/2022 2 2 iv) Action : JC/MC to consider linking with Councillor Sajid Patel for voices from the community; JC/MC 
01/12/2022 3 2 ix) Urgent Action : MP/MC – It was agreed that a positively drafted  response statement to the 

Zero Tolerance Statement - Racism should be issued as soon as possible with clarity around why 
we are doing and not doing certain things – a statement that can be stood behind if challenged 
by the unions, the workforce or the press. 

MP/MC 

01/12/2022 5 3 xix) Action : POs - DN wanted special note to be taken that ‘every On Call station is different’ and 
urged that if SIGMUB and ED&I Allies are not reaching out far enough, that POs ensure that 
within a 6-month period, everyone is visited and has the chance to meet with you direct. 

POs 

01/12/2022 5 3 xxi) Action : POs – Following AM/PO visits the messages need to be issued much more quickly; at 
the end of a ‘tour’ of around six months is much too late.  Tell people ‘this is what we heard 
and this is what we are going to do’, or ‘we are not sure about this one’, or ‘this is an easy win’. 

POs 

01/12/2022 7 7 vi) Action : MP/JC/MC – ensure we celebrate successes (Improvement Plan) and progress in 
comms messages. 

MP/JC/
MC 

01/12/2022 8 8 viii) Strong Steer - Action : MP/JC/MC – a strong steer was given, emphasising the need to deeply 
consider what you are trying to get across so that it ‘lands’ well and so that no fault is 
inadvertently attributed. 

MP/JC/
MC 

01/12/2022 8 8 x) Action : MP/JC/MC – challenge from the chair : what is the message you are trying to 
communicate as this is currently missing? 

MP/JC/
MC 

01/12/2022 8 8 xi) Action : MP/JC/MC – to produce a quarterly plan on a page detailing What, When and How 
using the action plan as a starting place. 

MP/JC/
MC 

01/12/2022 9 11 Action : JC – Deep Dive for the IB meeting on 12/01/2022 – Topics 2 and 3 combined. JC 
01/12/2022 9 13 Action : SM/MP/DN advance notice to prepare to deliver an Improvement Board update to the 

Fire Scrutiny Committee which sits on 13th January, the day after the next Improvement Board 
meeting. 

SM/MP/
DN 

Page 35 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 45



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

13 
MINUTES OF THE GFRS IMPROVEMENT BOARD MEETING – 01/12/2022 

APPENDIX A 

GFRS Improvement Board - Apologies received to 06/12/2022 

Meetings are scheduled by reference to the diaries of Steve Mawson (Chair), Mark Preece, 
Jean Cole, Mark Hawthorne and Dave Norman  

Meeting 
Date 

Apology offered 
by: Reason 

04/07/2022 Darren Skinner Annual leave 

07/09/2022 
Cllr Dave Norman Annual leave 

Gavin Roberts Annual leave 

20/10/2022 

Jean Cole Emergency Dental Appointment 
John Robertson tbc 
Chris Strickland Clash with SMT quarterly meeting (Chair) 

Emily McGuinness Attending a meeting of SW Local Authority Chief Execs 

01/12/2022 
Darren Skinner Annual leave 
Chris Strickland Annual leave 

Emily McGuinness Late call to urgent meeting 

12/01/2023 
Mark Preece Clash with FPOG meeting at Home Office 

Cllr Dave Norman Clash with FPOG meeting at Home Office 
02/03/2023 None received to date 
26/04/2023 Chris Strickland Clash with Fire Authority meeting 
22/06/2023 Darren Skinner Clash with different GCC board meeting 
14/09/2023 Darren Skinner Annual leave 

09/11/2023 
Chris Strickland Clash with Fire Authority meeting 
Darren Skinner Clash with Adult Social Care Transformation Board 
Mandy Quayle Clash with Adult Social Care Transformation Board 

18/01/2024 None received to date 

Page 36 of 36 
Fire Scrutiny 13.01.23 IB Chair Update 

Page 46



MTFS 23/24

Fire and Rescue Service – Context and Strategic Direction

The strategic direction of the Service is determined by the Community Risk 
Management Plan (CRMP) 2022-26. This is a statutory document outlining how we 
will match our resources to risks within the county through key objectives:

People and Social Responsibility: Further improve our inclusive culture to ensure 
that we attract, retain, support and develop a diverse workforce, which is truly 
representative of our communities.

Workforce ‘Fit for the future’: Develop and shape our Workforce to be ‘fit for the 
future’, strengthening health and wellbeing and ensuring that our people are equipped 
with the knowledge, skills and experience to continue building a safe, effective and 
resilient service to the people of Gloucestershire.

Prevention: Deliver tailored prevention activities that effectively and efficiently 
improve the safety, health and wellbeing of the diverse people who live, work in or visit 
Gloucestershire.

Protection: Deliver protection activities, to include inspections, audits, education and 
enforcement, which continue to reduce the likelihood and impact of fire in commercial 
buildings across Gloucestershire and reduce the risk to both the public and firefighters.

Response Arrangements: Review our existing arrangements to ensure that we have 
the required number of resources, with the right people and equipment, at the right 
time, in the right location.

Response Standards: Implement National Operational Guidance and approved 
National Fire Standards to assure and support operational competence, learning and 
preparedness.

Collaboration: Collaboration is important in every organisation. We will collaborate by 
communicating with partners and building on ideas to innovate or do something 
differently in the public’s interest.

Asset Management: Continue to provide best value facilities, vehicles, equipment 
and personal protective equipment (PPE), enabling us to deliver a professional service 
to our communities.

Digital, Data and Technology: Increase the use of data and business intelligence 
tools to ensure that we understand our risks and maximise the use of technology to 
respond appropriately to those risks.

His Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) 
reported Areas for Improvement across the Service which are being managed through 
its Portfolio Management Office (PMO). These are a broad spectrum of improvements 
across the three pillars of effectiveness, efficiency and people. The PMO assists to 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



oversee and manage change across the Service, ensuring that projects are 
adequately resourced, delivered on time and in scope.

There has been an increased focus on the two causes of concern identified by 
HMICFRS during their inspection in November 2021. This stated that the Service: 

 Hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed its values and 
associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture.

 Hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding of the 
importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to 
establishing EDI in the service.

In order to monitor progress, the GFRS Improvement Board has been established to 
gain support of the wider County Council. The Improvement board acts as a critical 
friend as the Service continues its improvement journey to:

 Maintain oversight to ensure that all the required improvements and quality 
assurances associated with the improvement journey by the Management 
Team are achieved in a timely manner. 

 Add scrutiny and rigour towards achieving the required outcomes.

 Support the Management Team by removing barriers where progress is 
hampered by elements outside of its control.

 Review the evidence, by way of Status (Ratification) Reports which 
demonstrates that improvements are embedded within the organisation by the 
implementation of robust systems, processes, policies and procedures.  

The Service is also ensuring the safety and wellbeing of its staff and the communities 
by embedding the Fire Professional Standards. These are overseen by the Fire 
Standards Board that has been set up to administer the identification, organisation, 
development and maintenance of professional Standards for Fire and Rescue 
Services in England. There are currently 12 Fire Professional Standards that cover 
subjects such as emergency response driving, fire investigation and emergency 
preparedness and resilience.

Fire and Rescue Service – Needs Analysis

GFRS identifies risks via Community Risk Profiles (CRP) which analyse previous 
incidents, fire safety audits and safe and well visits and future risks that could lead to 
emergency incidents in the future. 

Page 48



The CRP’s inform our decision making regarding the most suitable prevention, 
protection and emergency response arrangements to manage risk to an acceptable 
level. The risks we consider include: 

 Fatalities, reflecting the number of people killed at an incident.
 Casualties, covering those requiring medical intervention resulting from an 

incident and    mental health casualty.
 Evacuation and shelter from hazardous events.
 Behaviour, public perception and anxiety.
 Economic, to include property damage, heritage loss and business disruption.
 Disruption to essential services including transport, utilities, finance, 

communications and other Emergency Services.
 Environmental, including all types of pollution to the environment

The county is divided into six districts, City of Gloucester, Cheltenham, Forest of Dean, 
Tewkesbury, Cotswold and Stroud with the main urban centres being Gloucester and 
Cheltenham where approximately 40% of the county’s population live. 

Over the last 10 years, population growth has been concentrated in the urban areas 
although there is now a growing tendency towards residential development in more 
rural locations. It is for this reason that there is an objective concerning our response 
arrangements within our CRMP to review our existing arrangements to ensure that we 
have the required number of resources, with the right people and equipment, at the 
right time, in the right location. To achieve this an independent modelling company 
has been commissioned to model our future response arrangements based on 
historical data and what we know the future is likely to bring in terms of risk.

The Fire Sector has seen dramatic change in the function and services it provides over 
the last 40 years. The incident types that Firefighters attend in 2021 are very different 
to those in the 1980’s and much more broad ranging. The specialist functions our On-
call Firefighters support, both locally and nationally, have increased with a need for 
further training in areas such as co- responding, terrorism, rope rescue, water rescue 
and hazardous materials. Changes in roles can be linked to our governance through 
the Fire Services Act 2004 and the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, which set our 
statutory duties. A number of changes have also been made through the ongoing 
Government drive for the Fire Service reform agenda. Our On-call Firefighters 
regularly support other partners and healthcare professionals in the delivery of their 
functions. 

In order to provide the level of service determined by our CRMP and HMICFRS, GFRS 
needs to increase available resource supporting frontline services. This will allow the 
Service to improve overall and embed the new and emerging Fire Professional 
Standards.

Page 49



Revenue Funding

The Fire and Rescue net revenue budget requirement for 2023/24 totals £20.804m. 
This includes £1.289m for pay inflation costs and £1.547m of budget growth to aid 
delivery of the CRMP objectives and improvements required by HMICRFS.

The provisional revenue budget is set as follows:

Department Budget % 
Command (Senior Leadership, Community Safety 
PFI, Finance & Pensions)

£2.542m 12%

Transformation & Organisational Development 
(inc. Severn Park Training Centre)

£2.305m 11%

Business Planning & Performance £0.845m 4%
Response & Resilience (inc. control, wholetime 
Stations & On-Call)

£11.178m 54%

ICT £0.967m 5%
Logistics & Resources £1.140m 5%
Prevention & Protection (inc Business Fire Safety 
& SkillZONE)

£1.827m 9%

Capital Funding

The CRMP highlights the importance of asset management and investment in 
facilities, vehicles and equipment enabling us to deliver a professional service to our 
communities. In support of this, new capital schemes, totalling £785k, include:

 Stroud Community Fire & Rescue Station access £416k
 Provision of treadmills for fitness testing £86k
 Fleet charging system £155k
 Equipment to support alignment with the National Operational Guidance 

programme £128k

Fire and Rescue Service – Outcomes & Priorities for 23/24

Our commissioning intentions for 2023/24 are to:

 Deliver of the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Community Risk 
Management Plan (CRMP) 2022 – 2025 to reduce the risk of fire and other 
emergencies within the county.

 Respond to the outcomes of the HM Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire 
and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) report.

 Ensure the safety and wellbeing of our staff and the communities we serve by 
embedding the Fire Professional Standards.

Specific planned activities for 2023/24 include: 

 Implementation of the Cultural Change Plan
 Implementation of National Operational Guidance

Page 50



 Development of a Collaboration Framework
 Fire safety risk review 
 Delivery of the Emergency Service Network Programme 
 Procurement and roll-out of specialist PPE

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



49. Motion 901 – Road 
Safety in 
Gloucestershire

To include an item on 
recommendations for GFRS’s approach 
to road safety, such as in education 
and responding to incidents on the 
agenda for the next meeting. 

Laura 
Powick

This has been 
added to the 
agenda for 13 
January 2023. 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) is committed to reducing the number of people 
injured on our roads through a focused education programme across all ages, aligned to the 
Gloucestershire Road Safety Policy (agreed in Cabinet 23/11/22) and the Safe System Approach 
endorsed by the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC). The education programmes apply COM-B 
behaviour change methodology to reduce fatalities, serious injuries and the severity of collisions, 
and increase confidence in walking to school. 

Children
Our road safety education for children aged 7 to 14 is delivered through the SkillZONE life skills 
centre. 4032 children have undertaken road safety education in 2022 for which 100 teachers have 
completed the GCC Engagement HQ pre and post session evaluation and 100% of them think their 
students will make safer choices after the education session.  

Young Drivers
GFRS has a set of workshops aimed at young and inexperienced drivers delivered by staff in three 
main programmes: What If? Wrecked, and Passenger. What If? Is a collaborative project which is 
now under GFRS leadership; the education session is extensively supported by Gloucestershire 
Police and South West Ambulance, with speakers from all three emergency services at every event. 
These programmes are designed for the adolescent age group (age 17 to 18), we apply the COM-B 
model to encourage thoughtful driving behaviour.  The Wrecked and Passenger sessions were much 
reduced during the pandemic but have continued to be delivered to groups of young drivers by on-
call firefighters. These workshops are being re-launched by the newly appointed Fire Service Road 
Safety Coordinator and will be evaluated for their effectiveness, during 2023.  The evaluation of 
these programmes is a priority for the Service following the launch of intervention evaluation tools 
by NFCC. The most recent evaluation indicates intended behaviour change which would reduce 
speeding and collisions. 

Older Drivers
The work of the Older Drivers Forum for Gloucestershire contributes to reducing injuries and 
collisions involving older drivers. Their work has been well-supported by the OPCC and is integral to 
the planned road safety which will be delivered or supported by GFRS.  It has been agreed that GFRS 
will subsidise workshops for older drivers as this contributes to maintaining independence and 
reduces social isolation.  GFRS are working with the Older Drivers Forum to plan engagement with 
grandparents at SkillZONE as they are often responsible for school runs.  This has forged a much 
stronger link with the group to ensure that we embed Safe Systems across all age groups, whether 
for drivers or non-drivers. 

Response
The Safe System Approach also recognises that improved outcomes for people involved in road 
traffic collisions can be achieved by good emergency response and post incident care.  GFRS has 
engaged in training with partners to understand the dynamics of casualty extrication from modern 
vehicles and has taken part in exercises to ensure seamless communication and leadership at road 
traffic collisions. All operational staff undertake RTC training with our Cheltenham crew having 
advanced skills in Heavy and Large vehicle incidents, due to the location of the Specialist Incident  
Support Unit housed at Cheltenham East Station. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



Road Safety Education Programmes Delivered or Subsidised by GFRS

Group Education/Project Provider Objectives Evaluation/ 
Measure

Pedestrians Road safety scenario 

Universal offer:
Pedestrian crossing, rail crossing, 
crossing by bus stop and shops. 
Awareness of 30 mph speed 
limits 

New Journey
Specially designed to support 
independent travel to school and 
college for young people with a 
sensory impairment or disability.

GFRS
SkillZONE

GFRS
SkillZONE
GCC Travel 
Enablement 
Team

Knowing safer places to 
cross the road, making a 
safe choice to use a 
controlled crossing. 
Knowing to check first in 
case drivers are 
distracted.  Avoiding 
distraction, not using 
phones whilst crossing, 
being seen in the dark. 

Confident and safe use 
of the transport and 
road network

Pre and post session 
evaluation quiz.
 Teacher assessment 
on Engagement HQ.

Circa 6000 children per 
year

As above

Cyclists GCC Staff delivery Bikeability GCC GCC GCC

Powered 2 
wheelers 
(P2W)

Biker Down
 Free 3 hour workshop: accident 
scene management, first aid for 
motorcyclists, being a “Thinking 
Biker”

Run by volunteers with financial 
support from GFRS including 
venue, resources and volunteer 
training costs. 

NFCC 
Programme, 
designed by 
Kent Fire & 
Rescue and 
delivered at 
SkillZONE

Reduce serious injury 
and fatalities in 
vulnerable road user 
group. Know how to 
carry out trauma first 
aid. Being a “thinking 
biker” which is a global 
theme for avoiding high 
risk manoeuvres and 
collisions. 

Feedback from Biker 
Down

Young and 
Inexperienced 
Drivers

What If?

 Half day multi-agency event with 
stories from people with lived 
experience of RTC. 

Police, Fire and SWAST 
collaboration

GFRS led, 
collaborative, 
with extensive 
support from 
SWAST, OPCC 
and GlosPol

Change behaviour to 
reduce speeds, reduce 
drink/drug driving, and 
empower passenger 
responsibility for 
keeping behaviour calm 
in the vehicle.  

Evaluation is largely 
positive for expected 
behaviour change but 
will be evaluated 
against NFCC 
evaluation protocols in 
2023.
 6781 students during 
2022. 46 shows.

Wrecked and Passenger

2 hour workshop about good 
decision-making as a driver and 
passenger.  Speed awareness, 
drink/drug driving consequences. 
Safer choices and decision points. 

Pathfinder Under 17 Drivers 
Project

Behaviour change one week 
driving course. 

Schools, 
colleges, 
academies.

GFRS 
instructors & 
SkillZONE staff

Delivered by 
Pathfinder with 
GFRS funding 
£6000 to 
subsidise 20+ 
subsidised on 
each course for 
Gloucestershire 
adolescents.

Change behaviour to 
reduce speeds, reduce 
drink/drug driving, 
passenger responsibility 
for keeping behaviour 
calm in the vehicle.  

Improve new driver 
behaviour and skills. 
Proven to reduce 
severity and likelihood 
of collisions. Links 
attached. 

Feedback from 
organisers and 
students, young 
people state intention 
to act differently to 
reduce speed.  Will be 
formally evaluated in 
2023

Research based. See 
website for evaluation.

Page 54



Fire Scrutiny Committee Performance 

The performance around Safe and Well visits has been mixed during 2022.  Regrettably, 
performance remains below target and several strands of work are underway to resolve this. 

Improvement Plans

The staff in the Community safety Team who lead this area of the business have been 
delivering both virtual and in person refresher training to all on-call and wholetime stations to 
continue to explain the rationale for the Safe and Well visit and to provide continuing 
professional development about quality and standards for the work.  

The Service has also begun quality assurance of the Safe and Well visit reports and is using 
the information from this to identify the Watches that need to improve, the Station Manager 
Prevention is then arranging performance meetings with the supervisory staff to action 
improvements. 

There has seen some improvement in the number of Safe and Well visits being carried out 
and completed in a timely way but this has been impacted by capacity issues and pressures 
across the operational workforce, that are being explored in a time in motion study to be 
completed in January 2023. 

The recruitment of two full-time Community Safety Advisors (CSA’s) is almost complete, with 
interviews due to take place in late January. The two existing full-time staff have completed 
over 600 complex safe and well visits this year, they tend to see the most vulnerable 
residents and carry out joint visits with housing officers, social workers and care providers. 
The new staff will enable the Service to continue this work for people at highest risk of fire 
injury. Over 80% of our Safe and Well visits are for people with one or more high risk factors 
and identified as vulnerable to fire and we have made onward referrals for additional support 
for 387 people this year. 

Improving Standards

The backlog of Safe and Well visits has reduced following intensive focus on closing visits. 
This means that the issues seen in Q2 have significantly reduced, with only 36 visits 
outstanding for more than 28 days and only 5 waiting more than 90 days. 

We have begun the introduction of the Person-centred Framework, which will drive up 
standardisation of approach for Safe and Well with the focus now on addressing the 
personal behavioural and environmental risk factors for people, rather than their home. 

The Service has introduced the Online Home Fire Safety Self-Assessment, which is 
increasing the number of requests for a visit from people that were not known to other 
agencies.  This is a significant improvement in our offer to local residents. People who are at 
low risk from fire, can access targeted, specific advice online but if their answers highlight 
medium to high risk, they are asked to consent to a referral to GFRS. This is enabling us to 
increase the rate of Safe and Well for our population and reach people who might never 
have come to the attention of statutory services. We plan to promote the online service in the 
start of 2023 as this is new to all Fire Services and we need to ensure that our approach is in 
line with National guidelines. 

At the close of play in December 2022 we had completed in the region of 2,447 which is 
down on our target, we must take into account some areas that have reduced our delivery in 
2022. We had an above average operational summer due to the heatwave, reducing the 
amount of visits undertaken by crews, we also had some core staff sickness, coupled with 
the delay in the recruitment of two new CSA’s has reduced our output. There is also a learnt 
awareness of target setting against time, as a Safe and Well visit completed fully can take 90 
minutes where as a standard Home Fire Safety visit was completed in under 30 minutes, 
therefore we are now in a position that we have reduce the time available by two thirds 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



which will be considered for 2023/24 when we set achievable targets with this new 
information and knowledge. 

The Online Home Fire Safety check link is attached (below) for you to view and if not had a 
Safe and Well to complete, this will give you advice and if needed refer you for a safe and 
well if you are within our most vulnerable category. 

HFSC (safelincs.co.uk)

Fire Safety Protection Performance

Our Fire Safety KPI performance has continued to be steady but dropped in Q2, this can be 
equated to internal moves where experienced Officers were promoted to new roles leaving 
gaps in the Protection team, these roles have now been recruited to, and we will see a 
marked improvement in the delivery of our Risk Based Inspection Programme (RBIP). As a 
side note the RBIP is our overall visits and workload undertaken by the Protection team, but 
until Q2 the performance was attributed to only High Risk Premises, this has now been 
adjusted to show a percentage of audits/visits against our overall target and not just the High 
Risk Premises, Q3 and 4 should start to deliver against this adjusted target. 

For any further information please do not hesitate to contact Donna Potts Prevention or Nick 
Ashcroft the Protection manager for Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service. 

Cost of Living - Update 

GFS have asked for a section on the GCC Support Hub page to include the link to the 0800 
number and the online home fire safety check (OHFSC), to include the cost of living advice 
from the NFCC. This is not yet on the site GCC Communications are looking into this. 

GFRS have ordered 100 slow cookers to be issued to families and Station manager 
Prevention is looking into the best way of having these issued. We have already arranged to 
deliver them to Barnardo’s for families taking part in their cooking sessions and we are 
providing some to local food banks. We have alerted Safeguarding Leads in Health and 
Social Care who intend to ask community health teams for referrals. Gillman’s offered an 
excellent price, (Financed within the Prevention budget) 

Page 56

https://www.safelincs.co.uk/hfsc/


We have asked the team to expand our Safe and Well offer to families with children under 
12, in line with NFCC guidance in the Person-centred Framework and because we expect 
the cost of living crisis to draw more people into fuel poverty.

We have informed our partners at the Fire safety Sub Group about the expected fire risks 
and they are sharing this with staff who work in the community, who will send requests for a 
safe and well to us.

We have shared the link to the OHFSC on GFRS and GCC Facebook to reach more people.

The NFCC Cost of Living leaflets have arrived (4500) and these will be given out at any 
community events, provided to people in the warm spaces such as libraries and left in 
Council offices and any community spaces wherever people go for advice and support. A 
copy is attached.

Finally, we have increased our supply of CO alarms because more people will be using open 
fires this will give an early alert if there is a rise in Carbon Monoxide. 

We have discussed the risk of black mould in our most recent meetings. More likely as 
homes become colder and damper. We will add this as a safeguarding concern and flag to 
housing and to health if found during a Safe and Well visit.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Security classification: NO MARKING REQUIRED 
 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Newent and Winchcombe Fire and Police stations 
o Following operational scoping exercise, Winchcombe and Newent are the first fire stations 

identified as suitable locations for joint-basing.  
o Will see Neighbourhood Policing teams and Local Policing Team (response units) using 

facilities at fire stations. Local policing teams could now start and finish their shifts at the 
new hub, going out on patrol in both vehicles and on foot and returning for meal breaks. 
Teams could also use the building for pre-arranged appointments or meetings with the 
public and other agencies.  

o They can also serve as bases for local Special Constables and Volunteer Police 
Community Support Officers which the Police and Crime Commissioner and 
Constabulary are working to expand. 

o Opportunities for joint training between police and fire teams, and improved security for 
Fire Stations.  

o Approval provided by GCC Property Board 
o No change in GFRS use of site and no additional cost to GCC/ GFRS. There will be no 

custody facilities at these sites.  
 

•  Opportunity to share space at Cheltenham West CFS 
o Significant costs would be involved were any physical works required as this would need to 

be negotiated with the PFI provider.  
o However, following the committee’s suggestion, discussions are now underway with the 

PFI lead for GCC whether it would be possible, and operationally beneficial, for the 
Constabulary to have a similar arrangement at Cheltenham West as has been 
demonstrated with SWAFT at Gloucester South.  

o Visibility of the Constabulary and ability to deploy, particularly in Bishops Cleeve, would be 
the main objective for this work, so that will need to be examined closely.    

o Shared use of the space will also be considered as part of the shared access to buildings 
workstream that is currently underway as part of the collaboration work.  

 
• Joint involvement in CFO and DCFO recruitment.  

o OPCC Chief Executive took part in of the interview panel for the recruitment of the DCFO 
position.  

o PCC was part of the interview panel for CFO. 
 

• Gloucestershire emergency services collaboration board 
o Board has been re-established after a long period of abeyance.  
o Has so far met twice, with attendance from GCC Cabinet Member, PCC and DPCC, Chief 

Fire and Police Officers.  
o Permanent membership to be determined once new DCFO is in post.  
o SWASFT have now joined the board, and are keen to see where collaboration or best 

practice can be developed and deployed, building on work already done with GFRS. 
o Action plan being developed based around five areas of work: 

 
Emergency Services Collaboration 
Notes for Fire Scrutiny  

1. Training, leadership, health & wellbeing 
(may need to separate health & wellbeing) 

2.Operational collaboration and prevention 
 
3.Estate 
 
4.Capabilities 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Security classification: NO MARKING REQUIRED 
 

2 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

• Road Safety work 
o GFRS, OPCC, GCC and Constabulary all sit on the now formally launched Road Safety 

Partnership. Re-starting collaboration work that has simply not been happening up to now.  
o Combined communications work, sharing messages and look and feel of campaigns. Work 

to progress further.  
o The very successfully What if…? Campaign planning for next year has begun. Admin 

support transferred to GFRS with full support from OPCC. Schools are in the process of 
being contacted using a jointly approved letter. A new Road Safety Co-ordinator has been 
appointed by GFRS and due to start in December.  

 

• Plans for joint preventative work- a joint leaflet on self-help  
o New work stream established at last collaboration board. 
o Discussions underway to explore prevention work through a joint leaflet. This would be for 

prevention and community safety.  
o Documentation will be made available to public at community events eg community 

engagement vehicles/ appliance attendance at events to make sure that consistent 
messages on safety are getting to the public.  

 

• Joint working between our cadet units and mini-police 
o New work stream established at last collaboration board. 
o Police and Fire keen to explore opportunities with youths- mini cops, fire cadets and police 

cadets to work together, explore joint training and sports/ adventurous training 
opportunities. 

 

• Table top exercise for a major incident planned 
o Ongoing operational collaboration through Local resilience forum to ensure best response 

in the event of major incidents.  
 

• Community Safety Partnership level local collaboration between officers, taking a 
problem solving approach 

o Currently under Superintendent Roddy Gosden. He has already met with temp GM’s 
Richard Lockyer and Kevin Adcock from GFRS.  

o Funded through OPCC secured Safer Streets Funding, via the Home Office. 
o Holistic ASB training for partners.  

 
o Alongside rolling out Solace and investing in Community Triggers, we want to ensure 

all partners with a role to play in preventing and tackling ASB know what can be achieved 
through working in partnership to solve problems collectively.  To achieve this we will be 
providing training for frontline workers from Local Authorities, the Constabulary, Social 
Landlords, voluntary and community groups, Councillors, the local Fire and Rescue 
Service, etc. 

 
o The training will draw on the work from Professor Herman Goldstein which places an 

emphasis on understanding why a problem is occurring, the development of a tailored 
response and an assessment of the effects of the response.  Attendees will be encouraged 
to think of the tools and powers at their disposal to prevent, intervene take action when 
ASB does occur by using a real-life situations in their area.  

 
o Representatives from the local areas attending the training will then share their learning 

with their partners to support future problem solving activity.  
 

• Vulnerability visits.  

 
5.Communications 
 

Page 60

https://policinginsight.com/features/opinion/professor-herman-goldstein-a-policing-scholar-to-remember/


Security classification: NO MARKING REQUIRED 
 

3 
 

o Ongoing work to discover how local teams who carry out home visits, Neighbourhood 
police teams etc, can be trained to spot vulnerability in residents such as falls, home 
security and home fires etc. and share best practice, or refer for specialist visit from partner 
agency. 
  

• Leadership training 
o Fire officers attend Constabulary’s ‘Supportive leadership and wellbeing programme’ at the 

Leadership Academy in the Sabrina Centre.  
o Very successful collaboration, with positive feedback from all attendees about joint learning 

opportunities. From Sergeant/ staff supervisor and fire equivalents up. 
o  HMICFRS were very positive about the opportunities this presented.  

 
• Additional work  

o Asset mapping to support in operational delivery- eg RTC scene use of major incident 
shelters through SWASFT, deployment of volunteers 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2023

13 January 2023 10 March 2023  26 May 2023       

Discussion items 

 Update from Chair of the GFRS 
Improvement Board on progress to date 
(Steve Mawson)

 An Overview of GFRS’s Service Plans 
within the Context of the Draft Budget for 
2023/24 (Mark Preece)

 Motion 901 – Road Safety in 
Gloucestershire – recommendations on 
GFRS’s approach to road safety e.g., 
education, as well as its role in responding 
to incidents

Discussion items 

 Feedback on the HMICFRS re-visit 
Autumn 2022. 

 Update on progress with Safe and Well 
Visits (Head of Prevention)

 Shared use of Newent and Winchcombe 
Fire Stations – Progress Update 

 GFRS Net Zero Carbon Progress Update 
(to include total savings on carbon 
emissions for all vehicle types, as well as 
plans for reducing carbon footprint in 
energy use, equipment etc). 

 Review of Severn Park Joint Training 
Centre (delayed from January) (Rob 
Barnes)

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates
 Improvement Board Progress Update

Discussion items 
 Update on progress with GFRS/ 

Constabulary/ PCC/ SWAST 
Collaboration – written report

Information items 

 Improvement Board Progress Update

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



14 July 2023 15 September 2023 17 November 2023

Discussion items 

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Discussion items 

Information items 

  GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Discussion items 

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Future Items 

1 Fire Cover Review/ High Risk Buildings Date to be confirmed 5

2 Update on progress against CRMP 
objectives

Early 2023
Workshops, visits and member development sessions

3 The future of the Tri-Service Centre Date to be confirmed 1 Visit to Severn Park Joint Training Centre To be arranged

4 Update on progress with the 
Emergency Services Network 
Programme 

Date to be confirmed 2 Visit to the vehicle workshops at 
Waterwells

To be arranged

P
age 64


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	11 November 2022 FRSC Actions

	4 Update from the Chair of the GFRS Improvement Board
	Fire Scrutiny 01 12 2022 Progress Update
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X

	Fire Scrutiny Draft Minutes of an Improvement Board Meeting 01 12 2022

	5 GFRS's Service Plan within the Context of the Draft Budget 2023/24
	6 Motion 901 - Road Safety in Gloucestershire
	7 GFRS Performance Data and Updates
	8 Fire and Police Collaboration Written Brief
	9 Work Plan 2023



